SYNTHESIS, CHARACTERIZATION AND BIOLOGICAL EVALUATION OF MIXED LIGAND COMPLEXES OF Pt(IV), Pt(II) AND Pd(II) IONS CONTAINING DIBASIC ACIDS AND HETEROCYCLIC AMINES

PhD Thesis

BY

MD. BELAYET HOSSAIN



DEPARTMENT OF CHEMISTRY KHULNA UNIVERSITY OF ENGINEERING & TECHNOLOGY KHULNA-9203 JUNE-2014



SYNTHESIS, CHARACTERIZATION AND BIOLOGICAL EVALUATION OF MIXED LIGAND COMPLEXES OF Pt(IV), Pt(II) AND Pd(II) IONS CONTAINING DIBASIC ACIDS AND HETEROCYCLIC AMINES

PhD Thesis

BY

MD. BELAYET HOSSAIN

Rool. No: 0953751 Session: July, 2009

A thesis submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of doctor of philosophy in department of chemistry, khulna university of engineering & technology



DEPARTMENT OF CHEMISTRY KHULNA UNIVERSITY OF ENGINEERING & TECHNOLOGY KHULNA-9203 JUNE-2014

Declaration

work entitled "SYNTHESIS, the thesis certify that This is to CHARACTERIZATION AND BIOLOGICAL EVALUATION OF MIXED LIGAND COMPLEXES OF Pt(IV), Pt(II) AND Pd(II) IONS CONTAINING DIBASIC ACIDS AND HETEROCYCLIC AMINES" has been carried out in partial fulfillment of the requirement for PhD degree in the Department of Chemistry, Khulna University of Engineering & Technology, Khulna, Bangladesh. The above thesis work or any part of this work has not been submitted anywhere for the award of any degree or diploma. No other person's work has been used without due acknowledgement.

Supervisor

Prof. Dr. Mohammad Abu Yousuf

Candidate

8.06.14

Md. Belayet Hossain

Co-supervisor

×

Prof. Dr. Md. Abdus Salam

Department of Chemistry Khulna University of Engineering & Technology Khulna-9203

This is to certify that the thesis work submitted by *Md. Belayet Hossain* entitled "Synthesis, characterization and biological evaluation of mixed ligand complexes of *Pt(IV)*, *Pt(II)* and *Pd(II)* ions containing dibasic acids and heterocyclic amines" has been approved by the board of examiners for the partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of *Doctor of Philosophy* in the *Department of Chemistry*, Khulna University of Engineering & Technology, Khulna, Bangladesh in 28 June, 2014.

Board of Examiners

- SI. No. Name, Designation & Address 1 Prof. Dr. Mohammad Abu Yousuf Department of Chemistry Khulna University of Engineering & Technology Khulna-9203, Bangladesh.
 - 2 Prof. Dr Md Abdus Salam Department of Chemistry University of Dhaka Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh.
 - Head Department of Chemistry Khulna University of Engineering & Technology Khulna-9203, Bangladesh
 - Prof. Dr. Md. Abdul Aziz
 Department of Chemistry
 Khulna University of Engineering & Technology
 Khulna-9203, Bangladesh
 - Dr. Md. Mizanur Rahman Badal Associate Professor
 Department of Chemistry
 Khulna University of Engineering & Technology
 Khulna-9203, Bangladesh
 - 6 Prof. Dr. S. M. Saiful Islam Department of Chemistry Shahjalal University of Science & Technology Kumargaon, Sylhet 3114, Bangladesh.
 - 7 Prof. Dr. Md. Manzurul Karim Department of Chemistry Jahangirnagar University Savar, Dhaka, Bangladesh.

Signature

Chairman (Supervisor)

bein

Member (Co-supervisor)

(Member)

(Member)

(Member)

Member

(External Member)

Acknowledgement

I would like to express all praise and gratitude to the Almighty Allah for his infinite mercy bestowed on me in carrying out the research work depict of my personal troubles and hazards.

I appreciatively acknowledge my deep sense of gratitude to all who provided help and support to me during the course of my research work. I invariably feel short of words to express my heartfelt thanks and deep indebtedness to Prof. **Dr. Mohammad Abu Yousuf**, my supervising guide for his efficient guidance through the awesome path of research with great patience. His constant encouragement, fruitful discussions and valuable suggestions at different stages were really a great inspiration.

I would like to express my best regards profound gratitude indebtedness and deep appreciation to my honorable and beloved co-supervisor Dr. Md Abdus Salam, Professor, Department of Chemistry, University of Dhaka, Bangladesh.

I am also indebted to my beloved Dr. Shelina Afroza, secretary, Ministry of fisheries & Livestock, Bangladesh, & Sayed Arif Azad, Director General, DoF, Bangladesh for permitted me to complete this dissertation and valuable advice.

The support and encouragement of Dr. S. M. Saiful Islam, Professor, Department of Chemistry, Shahjalal University of Science & Technology in the whole stages of research, was of immense help and I am extremely thankful to him for the same.

The help and useful advice offered by Professor. Dr. Abdul Aziz, Professor. Dr. Abdul Motin, Dr. Mohammad Hasan Morshed, Associate Professor, Dr. Mijanur Rahman Badal, Associate Professor of this department during the crucial stages of my research work assisted me lot and I am obliged to all of them for their kind heartedness.

I wish to express my sincere thank to Abdur Rashed, Deputy Director, Fish Inspection & quality control, DoF, Khulna, for providing me the laboratory facilities, support and valuable advice.

I am immensely thankful to Dr. Musliuddin Ahmed & Dr. Nitay Nanda Das, Ex Deputy Directors, Fish Inspection & quality control, DoF, Khulna, for their valuable advice & support.

A lot of thanks and my appreciation are due to Md. Nazmul Hasan, FIQCO & M. Shajahan Kabir, Microbiologist, Fish Inspection & quality control, DoF, Khulna, for their help in using microbiology lab and providing me the necessary help.

I express my heartfelt appreciation to my parent, wife and brother for their love, affection and encouragement to complete this dissertation.

I would like to express my sincere thanks to all of my friends, Dr. Mainul Hossain & Dr. Ayesha sharmin, fellow, University of Montana, MT, United States, Dr. Mahbub Rahman, Associate Professor, Department of Chemistry, University of Rajshahi for their continuous inspiration.

I am also thankful to all of my colleagues Mr. Quamrul Islam, Technoligist, Mr. Jahidul Hasan, Biochemist, Mr. Zillur Rahaman, Technoligist, Bilash debnath, Technoligist, Mrs. Zinat Ara, Biochemist, Fish Inspection & quality control, DoF, Khulna, for their close association always kept me active throughout my work.

I am also appreciative to Department of Chemistry, University Kebangsaan Malaysia, Selangor, Malaysia for cordial help in elemental analysis.

×

Md. Belayet Hossain

Abstract

Mixed ligand complexes of dibasic acid and heterocyclic amine with transition metal ions have been synthesized and characterized. Research was devoted to the synthesis and characterization of mixed ligand complexes of Pt(II), Pt(IV) and Pd(II) ions with some dibasic acid (viz., malonic acid, oxalic acid and phthalic acid) as primary and heterocyclic bases, (viz., quinoline (Q), iso-quinoline (IQ), pyridine (Py), 2-aminopyridine (2apy) and 4-picoline (4-pico) as secondary ligands. The general formula of the complexes are as follows; $[MLL^1]$ (where M = Pt(IV) (1-8), Pt(II) (13), Pd(II) (9-12,14-17); L=2C₃H₂O₄, malonato (1-4), 2C₂O₄, oxalato (5-8), C₈H₄O₄, phthalato (9-13), oxalato $C_2O_4(14-17)$; and $L^1 = 2C_9H_7N$, quinoline (1, 5, 9, 14), 2C₉H₇N, iso-quinoline (2, 6, 10,15), 2C₅H₅N, pyridine (3, 7, 11, 16), 2C₆H₇N, 4-picoline (4, 8, 13), $C_5H_6N_2$, 2-aminopyridine (12, 17)). Complexes were characterized by elemental analysis, conductivity, magnetic measurement, infrared and electronic spectroscopic studies. All the complexes were isolated in the ethanolic solution as amorphous solid. All the synthesized complexes are colored. The complexes, all were slightly soluble in water and methanol but are readily soluble in DMF and DMSO. Single crystal of the complexes could not be isolated from any solution. The conductance values of the complexes were in the range (10.35 - 12.85) Ω^{-1} cm² mol⁻¹ indicated that these complexes were non-electrolyte in nature. Melting points of the complexes were in the range 240 to $270(\pm 5^{\circ}C)$ while those of the ligands were -15 to 211 (\pm 5°C) which indicate the strong indication of coordination of the ligands and formation of the complexes. The v(OCO)asym mode of Pt(IV), Pt(II) and Pd(II) complexes of oxalato, malonato & phthalato is found as a very strong-to-strong band at 1575.7-1708.9 cm⁻¹, and the corresponding v(OCO)sym one is exhibited at 1363.6- 1410.9 cm⁻¹. Two v(OCO) stretching symmetrical and asymmetrical lie lower than the free ion values and the frequency difference between these two modes is 198–317 cm⁻¹. From the frequency difference it is evident that the carboxylate group acts as a monodentate ligand. Further, the presence of MO (O = Oxygen in deprotonated dibasic acid) bonding is evident from the appearance of vM-O modes at 500.0-557.4 cm⁻¹ in the spectra of the complexes. The presence of M-N bonding in the complexes is evident from the appearance of v_{M-N} modes at 421.4 - 476.4 cm⁻¹. Shifting of infrared spectra of aminopyridine to ~3320.2-3345.3 cm⁻¹ and ~3056.0-3061.8 cm⁻¹ in the mixed ligand complexes is indicated the coordination

through amino nitrogen to the metal ions. By comparing the data of elemental analysis, magnetic moment, spectroscopic analysis the proposed empirical formula of the synthesized complexes can be following: [Pt(MA)2(Q)2](1), [Pt(MA)2(IQ)2](2), $[Pt(MA)_{2}(Py)_{2}](3), [Pt(MA)_{2}(4-pico)_{2}](4), [Pt(OX)_{2}(Q)_{2}](5), [Pt(OX)_{2}(IQ)_{2}](6), [Pt(OX)_{2}(Py)_{2}](7), [Pt(OX)_{2}(Py)_$ [Pt(OX)₂(4-pico)₂](8), [Pd(Ph)(Q)₂](9), [Pd(Ph)(IQ)₂](10), [Pd(Ph)(Py)₂](11), [Pd(Ph)(2-apy)](12), [Pt(Ph)(4-pico)₂](13), [Pd(OX)(Q)₂](14), [Pd(OX)(IQ)₂](15), [Pd(OX)(Py)2](16) and [Pd(OX)(2-apy)](17) where, MA = Deprotonated malonic acid, OX = Deprotonated oxalic acid, Ph = Deprotonated phthalic acid, Q = quinoline, IQ = iso-quinoline, Py = pyridine. 4-pico = 4-picoline, 2-apy = 2-aminopyridine. The magnetic moment values of the complexes indicated that these complexes are diamagnetic. This diamagnetism is supported by the small negative values obtained for their magnetic susceptibility. The electronic spectra of the Pt(IV) complex gave three bands at 36,000, 39,650 and 41,000 cm⁻¹ corresponding to the transitions ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}T_{1g}$, ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{3}T_{1g}$ and ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}T_{2g}$. In addition to the d-d transitions, the Pt (IV) complexes obtained two charge transfer bands at 39000 and 50000 cm⁻¹. The electronic spectra of the Pd (II) complex showed three spin allowed d-d transitions and two charge transfer bands. The bands were obtained at 22203-23055, 28155-28500, 31000-31350, 34500-35005 and 40000-40205 cm⁻¹ corresponding to the transitions ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}A_{2g}$, ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}B_{1g}$, ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}E_{g}$, ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}A_{2u}$ and ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}E_{u}$ respectively. The Pt(II) complex gave three bands at 36000, 39650 and 41000 cm⁻¹ corresponding to the transitions ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}B_{1u}$, ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}E_{u}$ and ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}A_{2u}$ respectively. Electronic spectra and magnetic measurement confirmed that Pt (IV) (1-8) complexes are octahedral structure and Pt (II) (13) & Pd (II) (9-12, 14-17) complexes are square planar structure. From the antibacterial screening it is seen that all complexes have antibacterial activity against Gram-positive (Listeria monocytogenes, Staphylococcus aureus, Enterococcus faecalis) and Gram-negative (Pseudomonas aeruginosa, Salmonella bovismorbificans, Salmonella typhi, Escherichia coli) bacteria through disc diffusion method. Complexes [Pt(MA)₂(4-pico)₂] showed the highest antibacterial activity against all bacteria tested. The complexes 1, 6 and 11 showed the lowest inhibition zones against Staphylococcus aureus, Listeria monocytogenes & Enterococcus faecalis corresponding to zone sizes of 8, 11 and 10 mm respectively. The complexes 2, 7 & 11 exhibited no zone inhibition against Staphylococcus aureus, Salmonella typhi and Salmonella bovismorbificans. All the synthesized complexes have shown mild to moderate antibacterial activity. The highest and the lowest activities were found in complex 4 and complex 11 respectively.

Symbol and Abbreviations

:	Oxalic acid
•	Phthalic acid
:	Malonic acid
	Quinoline
:	iso- quinoline
:	Pyridine
:	4-picoline
1	2-aminopyridine
:	Dimethylsulphoxide
:	N,N'-dimethyl formamide
2	Infrared
:	Gram
:	Absorption maximum
:	Percent
1	milliliter
1	Kelvin
•	Upward
3	Downward

Contents

rage
i
ii
iii
iv
vi
viii
ix
xii
xiii
xv

CHAPTER	I Introduction	01
1.1	The Mixed Ligand Metal Complex	02
1.2	Carboxylato Ligands	02
1.3	Heterocyclic Amine Ligands	04
1.4	Biologically Active Ligands	05
CHAPTER	II Literature survey	06
2.1	Previous Work	07
2.2	Aim of the Work	10
CHAPTER	III Experimental	13
3.1	Chemicals	15
3.2	General Method for Synthesis of the Complexes	16
3.3	Physical Measurements	16
3.3.1	Weighing	16
3.3.2	Melting Point Measurement	16
3.3.3	Conductivity Measurement	16
3.3.4	Magnetic Measurements	17
3.4	Analytical Techniques	20
3.4.1	Analysis for Carbon, Hydrogen and Nitrogen	20
3.4.2	Determination Palladium (II)	20

ix

-

	3.4.3	Determination of Platinum	20
	3.4.4	Infrared Spectra	20
	3.4.5	Electronic Spectra	20
	3.5	Antibacterial Activity	21
	3.5.1	Culture media	21
	3.5.2	Preparation of fresh culture	22
	3.5.3	Preparation of plates	22
	3.5.4	Preparation of discs	23
	3.5.5	Placement of the discs and incubation	24
	3.5.6	Calculation of the zone of inhibition	24
	3.6	Purification of the Solvents	20
	3.7.1	Synthesis of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pt (IV) Ion with Malonic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines (complex 1-4)	20
	3.7.2	Synthesis of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pt (IV) Ion with Oxalic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines (complex 5-8)	27
	3.7.3	Synthesis of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pd (II) and Pt (II) Ions with Phthalic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines (complex 9-13)	27
	3.7.4	Synthesis of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pd (II) Ion with Oxalic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines (complex 14-17)	28
CHA	PTER	IV Results and Discussion	29
	Charact	ariantian of NC 111 1 C 1	
	Malonio	Acid and Heterocyclic Amines [Complex 1-4]	30
	4.1.1	Physical Properties	30
	4.1.1.1	Solubility	30
	4.1.1.2	Color & Melting point	31
	4.1.1.3	Conductivity Measurement	31
	4.1.1.4	Magnetic Moment Measurement	32
	4.1.2	Elemental Analysis	32
	4.1.3	Infrared Spectra Studies	22
	4.1.4	Electronic Spectra Studies	35
	Character Acid an	erization of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pt (IV) Ion with Oxalic d Heterocyclic Amines [Complex 5-8]	40

4.2.1Physical Properties414.2.1.1Solubility41

х

4.4.1.2 4.4.1.3 4.4.1.4 4.4.2 4.4.3 4.4.4 Antibac: Complex 4.5.1	Magnetic Moment Elemental Analysis Infrared Spectra Studies Electronic Spectra Studies cerial Activity of The Mixed Ligand Pt(IV), Pt(II) & Pd(II) ces(1-17) Antibacterial Screening 7 Conclusion	6 6 6 7 7 7 8
4.4.1.2 4.4.1.3 4.4.1.4 4.4.2 4.4.3 4.4.4 Antibact Comple: 4.5.1	Magnetic Moment Elemental Analysis Infrared Spectra Studies Electronic Spectra Studies cerial Activity of The Mixed Ligand Pt(IV), Pt(II) & Pd(II) xes(1-17) Antibacterial Screening	6 6 6 7 7
4.4.1.2 4.4.1.3 4.4.1.4 4.4.2 4.4.3 4.4.3 4.4.4 Antibact Complex	Magnetic Moment Elemental Analysis Infrared Spectra Studies Electronic Spectra Studies erial Activity of The Mixed Ligand Pt(IV), Pt(II) & Pd(II) ces(1-17)	() () () () () () () () () () () () () (
4.4.1.2 4.4.1.3 4.4.1.4 4.4.2 4.4.3 4.4.4	Magnetic Moment Elemental Analysis Infrared Spectra Studies Electronic Spectra Studies	
4.4.1.2 4.4.1.3 4.4.1.4 4.4.2 4.4.3	Magnetic Moment Elemental Analysis Infrared Spectra Studies	
4.4.1.2 4.4.1.3 4.4.1.4 4.4.2	Magnetic Moment Elemental Analysis	(
4.4.1.2 4.4.1.3 4.4.1.4	Magnetic Moment	(
4.4.1.2	conductivity measurement	1
4.4.1.2	Conductivity Measurement	
4 4 1 0	Color & Melting point	1
4.4.1.1	Solubility	
4.4.1	Physical Properties	1
Charact Acid an	erization of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pd (II) Ion with Oxalic d Heterocyclic Amines [Complex 14-17]	and a second sec
4.3.4	Electronic Spectra Studies	
4.3.3	Infrared Spectra Studies	
4.3.2	Elemental Analysis	
4.3.1.4	Magnetic Moment Measurement	
4.3.1.3	Conductivity Measurement	
4.3.1.2	Color & Melting point	
4.3.1.1	Solubility	
4.3.1	Physical Properties	
Charact with Ph	erization of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pd (II) & Pt(II) Ion thalic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines [Complex 9-13]	
4.2.4	Electronic Spectra Studies	
4.2.3	Infrared Spectra Studies	
	Elemental Analysis	
4.2.2	Magnetic Moment Measurement	
4.2.1.4 4.2.2		
4.2.1.3 4.2.1.4 4.2.2	Conductivity Measurement	

xi

List of Tables

CHAPTER III

Table 3.1	List of Chemicals used	15
Table 3.2	List of used solvents	15
Table 3.3	Pascal's constant for the elements and molecules	19
CHAPTER	IV	
Table 4.1.1	Solubility of the synthesized complexes	31
Table 4.1.2	Physical properties of the complexes	32
Table 4.1.3	Elemental analyses of the complexes	33
Table 4.1.4	Infrared spectral data of the complexes (cm ⁻¹)	34
Table 4.1.5	Electronic spectral data (cm ⁻¹) of octahedral platinum (IV) complexes	35
Table 4.2.1	Solubility of the synthesized complexes	41
Table 4.2.2	Physical properties of the complexes	43
Table 4.2.3	Elemental analyses of the complexes	43
Table 4.2.4	Infrared spectral data of the complexes (cm ⁻¹)	45
Table 4.2.5	Electronic spectral data (cm ⁻¹) of octahedral platinum (IV) complexes	15
Table 4.3.1	Solubility of the synthesized complexes	40
Table 4.3.2	Physical properties of the complexes	54
Table 4.3.3	Elemental analyses of the complexes	54
Table 4.3.4	Infrared spectral data of the complexes (cm ⁻¹)	56
Table 4.3.5	Electronic spectral data (cm ⁻¹) of square-planar palladium (II) complexes	57
Table 4.3.6	Electronic spectral data (cm ⁻¹) of square-planar platinum (II) complexes	57
Table 4 4 1	Solubility of the synthesized complexes	57
Table 4.4.2	Physical properties of the complexes	04
Table 4.4.3	Elemental analyses of the complexes	65
Table 4 4 4	Infrared spectral data of the complexes (cm ⁻¹)	00
Table 4.4.5	Electronic spectral data (cm ⁻¹) of square-planar palladium (II) complexes	68
Table 4.5.1	Antibacterial activity of the complexes (1-4)	08
Table 4.5.2	Antibacterial activity of the complexes (5-8)	75
Table 4 5 3	Antibacterial activity of the complexes $(0,13)$	70
Table 4.5.4	Antibacterial activity of the complexes (14, 17)	70
14010 4.5.4	Antibacterial activity of the complexes (14-17)	18

xii

Page

	List of Figures	
		Page
CHAPTER I		
Figure 1.1	Coordination modes of carboxylate group	03
Figure 1.2	Dibasic acids co-ordinate with metal ion	04
Figure 1.3	Tertiary nitrogen co-ordinate with metal atoms	04
CHAPTER III		
Figure 3.1	Sterilization of media in the autoclave	22
Figure 3.2	Preparation of fresh culture	23
Figure 3.3	Preparation of plate	23
Figure 3.4	Preparation of disc	24
Figure 3.5	Placement of disc on solidified agar plate	25
Figure 3.6	Incubation of plate	25
Figure 3.7	Calculation of the zone of inhibition	26
CHAPTER IV		
Figure 4.1.1(a)	Probable structure of the complex-1, [Pt(IV)(MA) ₂ (Q) ₂]	36
Figure 4.1.1(b)	Probable ball and stick model of the complex-1, [Pt(IV)(MA) ₂ (Q) ₂]	36
Figure 4.1.2(a)	Probable structure of the complex-2, [Pt(IV)(MA) ₂ (IQ) ₂]	37
Figure 4.1.2(b)	Probable ball and stick model of the complex-2, [Pt(IV)(MA) ₂ (IQ) ₂]	37
Figure 4.1.3(a)	Probable structure of the complex-3, [Pt(IV)(MA) ₂ (Py) ₂]	38
Figure 4.1.3(b)	Probable ball and stick model of the complex-3, [Pt(IV)(MA) ₂ (Py) ₂]	38
Figure 4.1.4(a)	Probable structure of the complex-4, [Pt(IV)(MA) ₂ (4-Pico) ₂]	39
Figure 4.1.4(b)	Probable ball and stick model of the complex-4, [Pt(IV)(MA) ₂ (4-Pico) ₂]	39
Figure 4.2.1(a)	Probable structure of the complex-5, [Pt(IV)(OX) ₂ (Q) ₂]	47
Figure 4.2.1(b)	Probable ball and stick model of the complex-5, [Pt(IV)(MA) ₂ (Q) ₂]	47
Figure 4.2.2(a)	Probable structure of the complex-6, [Pt(IV)(OX) ₂ (IQ) ₂]	48
Figure 4.2.2(b)	Probable ball and stick model of the complex-6, [Pt(IV)(OX) ₂ (IQ) ₂]	48
Figure 4.2.3(a)	Probable structure of the complex-7, [Pt(IV)(OX) ₂ (Py) ₂]	49
Figure 4.2.3(b)	Probable ball and stick model of the complex-7, $[Pt(IV)(OX)_2(Py)_2]$	49
Figure 4.2.4(a)	Probable structure of the complex-8, [Pt(IV)(OX) ₂ (4-Pico) ₂]	50
Figure 4.2.4(b)	Probable ball and stick model of the complex-8, [Pt(IV)(OX) ₂ (4-Pico) ₂)	50
Figure 4.3.1(a)	Possible structure of the complex-9, [Pd(II)(Ph)(Q) ₂]	58
Figure 4.3.1(b)	Possible ball and stick model of the complex-9, [Pd(II)(Ph)(Q) ₂]	58
Figure 4.3.2(a)	Possible structure of the complex-10, [Pd(II)(Ph)(IO) ₂]	59

xiii

Figure 4.3.2(b)	Possible ball and stick model of the complex-10, [Pd(II)(Ph)(IQ) ₂]	59
Figure 4.3.3(a)	Possible structure of the complex-11, [Pd(II)(Ph)(Py) ₂]	60
Figure 4.3.3(b)	Possible ball and stick model of the complex-11, [Pd(II)(Ph)(Py) ₂]	60
Figure 4.3.4(a)	Possible structure of the complex-12, [Pd(II)(Ph)(2-apy)]	61
Figure 4.3.4(b)	Possible ball and stick model of the complex-12, [Pd(II)(Ph)(2-apy)]	61
Figure 4.3.5(a)	Possible structure of the complex-13, [Pt(II)(Ph)(4-pico) ₂]	62
Figure 4.3.5(b)	Possible ball and stick model of the complex-13, [Pt(II)(Ph)(4-pico) ₂]	62
Figure 4.4.1(a)	Possible structure of the complex-14, [Pd(II)(OX)(Q) ₂]	69
Figure 4.4.1(b)	Possible ball and stick model of the complex-14, [Pd(II)(OX)(Q) ₂]	69
Figure 4.4.2(a)	Possible structure of the complex-15, [Pd(II)(OX)(IQ) ₂]	70
Figure 4.4.2(b)	Possible ball and stick model of the complex-15, [Pd(II)(OX)(IQ) ₂]	70
Figure 4.4.3(a)	Possible structure of the complex-16, [Pd(II)(OX)(Py) ₂]	71
Figure 4.4.3(b)	Possible ball and stick model of the complex-16, [Pd(II)(OX)(Py) ₂]	71
Figure 4.4.4(a)	Possible structure of the complex-17, [Pd(II)(OX)(2-apy)]	72
Figure 4.4.4(b)	Possible ball and stick model of the complex-17, [Pd(II)(OX)(2-apy)]	72
Figure 4.5.1	Graphical comparision of zone of inhibition of the complexes 1-4 with standard (Kanamycin)	75
Figure 4.5.2	Graphical comparision of zone of inhibition of the complexes 5-8 with standard (Kanamycin)	76
Figure 4.5.3	Graphical comparision of zone of inhibition of the complexes 9-13 with standard (Kanamycin)	77
Figure 4.5.4	Graphical comparision of zone of inhibition of the complexes 14-17 with standard (Kanamycin)	78
Figure 4.5.5	Photographic representation of zone of inhibition of complexes 1 and 2 respectively against the bacteria <i>Listeria monocytogenes</i>	79
Figure 4.5.6	Photographic representation of zone of inhibition of complexes 5 and 6 respectively against the bacteria <i>Escherichia coli</i> .	79
Figure 4.5.7	Photographic representation of zone of inhibition of complexes 7 and 8 respectively against the bacteria <i>Salmonella bovismorbificans</i>	79
Figure 4.5.8	Photographic representation of zone of inhibition of complexes 9 and 10 respectively against the bacteria <i>Enterococcus faecalis</i> .	79
Figure 4.5.9	Photographic representation of zone of inhibition of complexes 11, 12 and 13 respectively against the bacteria <i>Salmonella typhi</i>	80
Figure 4.5.10	Photographic representation of zone of inhibition of complexes 14 and 15 respectively against the bacteria <i>Staphylococcus aureus</i> .	80

T

List of Publications

- Md. Belayet Hossain, Md. Abdus Salam, Farzana Siddiquee and M. A. Yousuf, "Synthesis, Characterization and Antibacterial Activity of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pd(II) Ions with Oxalic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines" Bangladesh Pharmaceutical Journal, Vol.17(1): 46-50, 2014.
- Md. Belayet Hossain, Md Abdus Salam and M. A.Yousuf, "Synthesis, Characterization and Antibacterial Studies of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pt(IV) Ion with Malonic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines" Journal of Bangladesh Chemical Society, Vol. 26(2), 187-194, 2014.
- Md. Belayet Hossain, Md Abdus Salam and M. A. Yousuf, "Synthesis, Characterization and Antibacterial Studies of the Mixed Ligands Complexes of Pd(II) & Pt(II) Ions with Phthalic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines" Bangladesh Pharmaceutical Journal, Vol. 17 No 2 (Accepted).
- 4. Md. Belayet Hossain, Md Abdus Salam, M. A. Yousuf and Abdur Rashed, "Characterization and Antibacterial Studies of the Mixed Ligands Complexes of Pd(II) Ion with Phthalic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines" Journal of Engineering Science, Vol. 4 No 2 (Accepted).



Introd	luction	the second se
	1.1	The Mixed Ligand Metal Complex
ent	1.2	Carboxylato Ligands
Cont	1.3	Heterocyclic Amine Ligands
0	1.4	Biologically Active Ligands

1. Introduction

1.1 The Mixed Ligand Metal Complex

Mixed ligand metal complexes are the compounds in which metal ion is simultaneously bonded to two or more different kinds of ligands. These complexes are generally formed in most solutions which contain metal ions and have more than one kind of ligands having sufficiently small number of donor atoms. The mixed ligand metal complexes are likely to be important as models for metalloenzyme-substrate complexes and also as components of the multi-metal-multi-ligand systems in biological fluids and thus provide a strong impetus for increasing interest in this area. Marcus, Y *et al.*¹ have observed that the addition of another, B ligand to a complex MB Perrin which already bears a B ligand is more difficult than adding B to a complex MA, which contains a different ligand, A. The stability of the mixed ligand complex depends on the ligand stability factors and shape of ligands.

In complex compound, the co-ordination number of the central metal atom/ion is coordinated with various types of ligands. The co-ordination number is occupied according to the power of the ligand. First ligand is called primary ligand and the second ligand is called the secondary ligand respectively.

1.2 Carboxylato Ligands

Carboxylate chemistry is indispensable for the construction of inorganic motifs having interesting material properties². Among the various ligands, multidentate O-donor ligands like carboxylic acid can act as good building blocks in constructing metal–organic frameworks, which possess carboxylate groups and exhibit varied

Chapter One

Introduction D 3

coordinate modes. Some possible coordination modes for metal carboxylate complexes are shown in figure 1.1^3 .



Among the different coordination modes, chelating, monodentate, and bridging are the three modes which generally decide the structural features of inorganic carboxylato complexes⁴⁻⁵ and they have also been studied from the theoretical point of view ⁶. The carboxylate group having bis(unidentate) bridged complexes is known as the secondary part in polynuclear carboxylato complexes⁷⁻¹⁰. Transition metal complexes of dicarboxylic acid such as, malonic acid, maleic acid, malic acid, phthalic acid have been used as dicarboxylate or chelating ligands ¹¹⁻¹⁴. Although dicarboxylic acid have no co-ordination position but under suitable condition (slightly

Chapter One

alkaline medium) these acids loose protons from both the carboxyl group and act as dinegative bidentate ligands. They tend to form 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 membered chelate rings in their respective cases (figure 1.2).



1.3 Heterocyclic Amine Ligands

Heterocyclic amines are common ligands for complexation. The heterocyclic amines although possess tertiary nitrogen, co-ordinate readily with metal atoms (figure 1.3).



Chapter One

1.4 Biologically Active Ligands

The ligands attached to the compounds which are very essential for life form are called biological active ligands. The synthetic macro cyclic complexes, particularly with tetradentate nitrogen donor ions, are most important from the biological viewpoint mainly due to their structural similarities to the natural macro cyclic complexes, like, vitamin B12, chlorophyll, hemoglobin, etc. Special compound such as hemoglobin forms bonds with protein through oxygen, act as ligand. Moreover, myoglobin, glycoprotein (Sugar + Protein = Glycoprotein) etc are involve in many important biological process, which play important and multifarious role in biological systems¹⁵⁻¹⁹. The intriguing mode of function of these natural systems is now well understood. The vital functions performed by the natural systems can largely be determined by the nature of the metal ions enclosed in it. For example, the catalytic properties of vitamin B_{12} and its coenzyme are due to the ability of the cobalt ion to act as a storehouse for an electron which can be released or accepted as required. The metal ion in natural macrocyclic complexes are trapped in such a complicated structure that the fundamental properties of these metal ions are still not well understood. It is, therefore, reasonable to synthesize simple macrocyclic complexes which can be considered as model compounds. Some of these compounds could mimic the properties of their natural counterparts and investigations with them would provide us an easier approach to the study of fundamental properties of metal ions encapsulated in the macrocyclic environment. The rapid developing field of bio-inorganic chemistry is centered on the presence of metal complexes in living systems.



Liter	ature su	irvey	
tent	2.1	Previous Work	
Con	2.2	Aim of the Work	

2.1 Previous Work

Now-a-days, metal complexes are the most active research field of inorganic chemistry. A survey of articles in recent uses of the journal of inorganic chemistry indicates that perhaps 70% could be considered to deal with metal complexes. Progress in this area of chemistry has received an added impetus because of its many applications to chemical industry and biology. It has been clearly understood and supported that many of the chemical elements including metal ions control a vast range of biological processes going a new dimension to co-ordination chemistry ²⁰.

Transition metals have an important role in medicinal biochemistry^{21–25}. The complexes of transition metals have a significant importance that can be utilized as drugs to treat several human diseases like, carcinomas²⁶, lymphomas²⁷, anti-inflammatory²⁸, diabetes²⁹, and neurological disorders³⁰. Transition metals exhibit different oxidation states and can interact with a number of negatively charged molecules. This activity of transition metals has started the development of metal based drugs with promising pharmacological applications and may offer unique therapeutic opportunities. A number of transition metals metal complexes with dicarboxylic acid have been prepared and characterized.³¹⁻³⁵

Angel and co-workers reported that syntheses and structural, spectroscopic and magnetic characterization of two new Bis(imidazol-2-yl)methylaminomethane (BIMAM) containing copper(II) oxalato derivatives in which oxalato ligands show different coordinating behavior and whose 3D solid-state networks are held together by a combination of H-bonding and aromatic-aromatic interactions provided by the convenient structural features of BIMAM and oxalate³⁶. The structures of solid uranium(VI) oxalato compounds reveal different modes of bonding of the ligand chelated through one oxygen from each carboxylate group³⁷, coordinated through two

oxygen atoms of the same carboxylate group or bonded to a single carboxylate oxygen. In most of these structures, the oxalate is bridging different uranyl units. The composition of the complexes have previously been determined by equilibrium analytical methods³⁸ but with different conclusions as to the stability of the $UO_2[oxalate]_3^{-4}$ complex.

Research works using malonate as bridging ligand in copper(II) complexes have shown the versatility of this ligand³⁹⁻⁴². The structural complexity in its metal complexes is associated with the simultaneous adoption of chelating bidentate and different carboxylato-bridging coordination modes. The use of $[Cu(mal)_2]^{2-}$ as a complex ligand allowed the preparation of dimers³⁹, trimers⁴², and one⁴¹ and two-dimensional⁴⁰ complexes whose structure and magnetic properties were subject of recent investigation.

Santiago *et al*⁴³ reported that novel malonato-bridged copper(II) complexes were prepared and characterized by elemental analyses, electronic spectra, magnetic susceptibilities and X-ray structure analysis. An exhaustive survey of the existing literature reveals that a very little has been done on the metal complexes of malonic & oxalic $\operatorname{acid}^{42, 44}$.

A very few survey has been done on the Pt(IV) & Ni(II) complexes of phthalic acid¹⁴. The study on the metal complexes of heterocyclic amine bases have been carried out¹¹⁻¹⁴ they have suggested that reactivity of these complexes depend on the nature of heterocyclic amine bases. Complexes of substituted phenanthrolines with pentacoordinate palladium carboxylate were studied, and the structure of $[Pd(Phen)_2(CO_2CH_3)](PF_6)$ was reported⁴⁵. Polypyridyl ruthenium (III) complexes based on 2,2'-bipyridine, 1,10-phenanthroline ligands possess interesting photophysical, photochemical, and electrochemical characteristics⁴⁶⁻⁴⁷ which make them appealing for the construction of luminescent sensors and photoactive molecular-scale devices⁴⁸⁻⁴⁹. Nicolas and coworkers undertaken a study on a new type of mixed ligand Pt(II) complexes with pyrimidine and sulfoxide ligands. They have reported the synthesis and characterization of complexes the types *cis-* and *trans-* Pt(R₂SO)(pm)Cl₂. These compounds were prepared from the reaction of

 $K[Pt(R_2SO)Cl_3]$ with pyrimidine in water for the *trans* isomer and in methanol for the *cis* compound. The first product is *trans* complex, which then isomerizes to *cis* isomer. The isomerization is quite slow in water especially with more bulky ligands but much faster in an organic solvent. In the second part of the research project, they isolated and characterized a new type of pyrimidine-bridged binuclear complexes with sulfoxide ligands⁵⁰.

Moreover, metal complexes of heterocyclic amine bases have been study by several workers⁵¹⁻⁵⁸. Several mixed-ligand complexes of Pd(II) and Pt(II) have been prepared and characterized by elemental analysis, conductivity measurements, Infra-red, electronic absorption and ¹H-NMR spectroscopic techniques by Anbalagan *et al* ⁵⁹. Puthraya and his coworkers⁶⁰ have reported some complexes with formula $[Pd(bipy)(AA)_2]$ where bipy is 2, 2' = bipyridine and AA is an anion of glycine, L-alanine, L-leucine, L-proline, L-serine, L-lysine, L-asparagine or L-glutamine.

Iwona and coworkers carried out synthesis, molecular structure characterization, and *in vivo* cytotoxic effect of $[PtCl_2(6-mp)_2]$ and $[PtCl_4(dbtp)_2]$ against B₁₆ mouse melanoma cells⁶¹. They decided to test new Pt(IV) compounds with different heterocyclic ligands which provide better solubility in water. It was demonstrated that the presence of the tert-butyl group in the 5 and 7 positions of the heterocyclic ring is likely to be a major factor in the improvement of the antitumor activity of Pt(II) and Pt(IV) compounds⁶²⁻⁶⁴. Aleksandrov were synthesized and crystal structure determination of tetranuclear platinum(II)complex $[Pt_4(m-CH_3COO)_5(m-NO)_2(m-NO_2)]$. They explain the bridging acetate groups are easily substituted by other carboxylate groups (of benzoic, picolinic, and trichloro- and trifluoroacetic acids) and ethylenediamine⁶⁵.

There are many report of metal complexes containing carboxylic or dicarboxylic groups have both salt forming and coordinating properties. The reported complexes are generally insoluble in polar solvents and soluble in non-polar solvents and hence are very important form analytical, industrial and pharmaceutical point of view⁶⁶⁻⁷¹.

A very few survey has been done on the Pd(II) complexes with the tridentate dianionic ligand pyridine-2,6-dicarboxylate⁷². Eryazici and co-workers were

Literature survey 10

synthesized of some square-planar Pd(II), Pt(II), and Au(III) terpyridine complexes. They were determined physical properties, supramolecular constructs, and biomedical activities⁷³. There are many reports on Pd(II) complexes of heterocyclic amine with structural & magneto structural characterization⁷⁴⁻⁸¹.

2.2 Aim of the Work

The human body contain as many as 81 out of 92 naturally occurring elements⁸². Most of these elements in trace levels which are also of great importance for human physiology indeed some of them are essential for life itself ⁸³. Such as complex compounds occur in nature, in blood (hemoglobin) which is an iron complex and functions as oxygen carrier of the blood stream similarly the green color of the leaves are due to a complex of magnesium with chlorophyll. Some elements also be toxic even in any concentration is above a certain level. From the nutritional point of view those essential elements, almost found in trace concentration levels play an important role in biochemical processes. In addition to all benefits due to modern technology, the increasing industrial activity is introducing contaminants in food, water and air.

Since modern antibiotic therapy was started, the abuse of antibacterial agents in many fields of human medicine and of zootechnic activities has promoted the progressive development of bacterial resistance⁸⁴. Orally active cephalosporin, cefdinir is of clinical importance for the treatment of bacterial infections⁸⁵. Use of Cisplatin, [Pt(NH₃)₂Cl₂] as an effective anticancer drug and gold salts in treatment of rheumatoid arthritis has increased interest of researchers toward transition metal complexes in order to obtain metal-based drugs exhibiting a high biological activity⁸⁶. Platinum(II) complexes and its derivatives have been widely recognized as potent anticancer agents, effective against different types of cancer *in vitro*⁸⁷⁻⁸⁸. After the discovery of its activity, thousands of platinum complexes have been synthesized and tested so far. In one recent study, new Pt based agents have been reported to have distinct features from marketed platinum drugs in several critical aspects⁸⁹. Cisplatin has become a standard drug for the treatment of patients with non-small cell lung cancer. It was one of the most frequently used chemotherapeutic drugs worldwide for long time⁹⁰⁻⁹². One way of designing new antitumor prodrugs, related to cisplatin is to

Literature survey 11

change the nature of the central ion and to use six-coordinate octahedral Pt(IV) derivatives. The potential advantage of Pt(IV) complexes in the higher oxidation state is the increased possibility for the Pt(II) moiety reactivity to reach the cellular target before its reduction allowing thus activity with the cell⁹³. In addition, potential advantages of Pt(IV) complexes in comparison with Pt(II) compounds are that their lower reactivity decreases the loss of active drug and lowers the incidence of unwanted side reactions leading to toxic side effects in the bloodstream⁹⁴. Studies on the Pt-complexes have been carried out by several workers⁹⁵⁻⁹⁷. Palladium(II) complexes on the other hand have been reported to possess antitumor activity at least comparable to cisplatin⁹⁸. Therefore, new metal-based agents like, Pd complexes seem to be promising for the development of novel and improved chemotherapeutic drugs⁹⁹. The ligand environment of transition metals (presented in very low concentration in vivo) can be considerably altered upon the administration of a therapeutically effective dose of an antibacterial drug. This change in balance between the metal ion and the ligand may have a profound effect upon the activity of drug against potentially susceptible bacteria. It has also been reported that the transport of organic ligands into the cells can be facilitated by the formation of metal complexes¹⁰⁰. The literature reveals that chelation causes drastic changes in the biological properties of the ligands and metal moiety¹⁰¹. Chelation of metal with inactive substances renders them active and that with active drugs make them more active and less toxic¹⁰²⁻¹⁰⁴. The cefdinir molecule contains the -NH₂, -COOH, and -CO functional groups and construction of molecular models indicates that its structure is suitable for chelate formation¹⁰⁰. There are many reports on the transition metal malonato¹⁰⁵, phthalato¹⁰⁶ and maleato¹⁰⁷ with structural and biological characterization. In the present investigation heterocyclic amines have been used in most of the cases as secondary ligands. It has great importance in biological and industrial fields. Most of the heterocyclic bases are used as corrosion inhibitors and as antibacterial, anticonvulsive, antifungal and antifouling agents¹⁰⁸⁻¹¹². Their activity is generally enhanced when they are allowed to form complex with metal ions.

In view of, the above and continuation of previous studies on the synthesis of metal complexes of biologically important ligands, research on mixed ligand complexes of transition metals has been acclimatized as the present topic of the work . The work

incorporated in this thesis is on the interaction of some organic ligands with metal ions and there antibacterial studies have been carried out.

We have planned for the synthesis, characterization & biological studies of mixed ligand complexes of Pt(II), Pt(IV), and Pd(II) metal ions containing some dibasic acids (oxalic acid, malonic acid & phthalic acid) and heterocyclic amines (quinoline, *iso*-quinoline, pyridine, 2-aminopyridine & 4-picoline).

Significant progress has been made in the design and synthesis of complexes & the complexes are shown antibacterial activities against the treated bacteria.



Exper	imental	
A Date	3.1	Chemicals
	3.2	General Method for Synthesis of the Complexes
	3.3	Physical Measurements
H	3.3.1	Weighing
15	3.3.2	Melting Point Measurement
E	3.3.3	Conductivity Measurement
	3.3.4	Magnetic Measurements
	3.4	Analytical
	3.4.1	Analysis for Carbon, Hydrogen and Nitrogen
The Real	3.4.2	Determination Palladium (II)
	3.4.3	Determination of Platinum
	3.4.4	Infrared Spectra
	3.4.5	Electronic Spectra
	3.5	Antibacterial Activity
	3.5.1	Culture media
t	3.5.2	Preparation of fresh culture
nter	3.5.3	Preparation of plates
Cot	3.5.4	Preparation of discs
	3.5.5	Placement of the discs and incubation
	3.5.6	Calculation of the zone of inhibition
	3.6	Purification of the Solvents
	3.7.1	Synthesis of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pt (IV) Ion with Malonic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines (complex 1-4)
	3.7.2	Synthesis of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pt (IV) Ion with Oxalic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines (complex 5-8)
	3.7.3	Synthesis of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pd (II) and Pt (II) Ions with Phthalic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines (complex 9-13)
	3.7.4	Synthesis of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pd (II) Ion with Oxalic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines (complex 14-17)

3.1 Chemicals

All the chemicals were of Analytical grade and unless otherwise specified, were used as received. The solvents were purified using conventional methods (discussed in section 3.6). Used chemicals were listed in table 3.1 and 3.2.

No	Name of the Chemicals	Formula	Formula mass	Suppliers	Purity
1	Hexachloro platinic acid hydrate	Cl ₆ H ₂ Pt	409.8	Sigma-Aldrich (USA)	38% pt
2	Platinum(II) chloride	PtCl ₂	266.08	Sigma-Aldrich (USA)	99%
3	Palladium(II)Chloride	PdCl ₂	177.42	E. Merck (Germany)	97%
4	Phthalic acid	C ₈ H ₆ O ₄	166.14	Merck (England)	99%
5	Malonic acid	$C_3H_4O_4$	104.06	Merck (England)	99%
6	Oxalic acid	$C_2H_2O_4.2H_2O$	126	BDH (England)	99%
7	Quinoline	C ₉ H ₇ N	129.16	BDH (England)	pure
8	iso-quinoline	C ₉ H ₇ N	129.16	BDH (England)	pure
9	Pyridine	C₅H₅N	79.10	Thomas Baker (India)	99.5%
10	2-aminopyridine	$C_5H_6N_2$	74.12	BDH (England)	98%
11	4-picoline	C ₆ H ₇ N	93.13	BDH (England)	97%

Table 3.1: List of Chemicals used

Table 3.2: List of used solvents

No	Organic solvents	Formula	Suppliers	Purity
1	Absolute ethanol	C ₂ H ₅ OH	Sigma-Aldrich (USA)	99%
2	Acetone	CH ₃ COC H ₃	Sigma-Aldrich (USA))	99%
3	Methanol	CH ₃ OH	Sigma-Aldrich (USA)	99.5%
4	Acetonitrile	CH ₃ CN	Sigma-Aldrich (USA)	99.5%
5	<i>N,N'</i> -Dimethylformamide (DMF)	HCON(CH ₃) ₂	BDH (England)	99.5%
6	Dimethyl sulfoxide (DMSO)	(CH ₃) ₂ SO	BDH (England)	99.5%

Experimental 16

3.2 General Method for Synthesis of the Complexes

An ethanolic solution of Pt(II), Pt(IV) and Pd(II) ions and dibasic acids (MAH₂, OXH₂, PhH₂) was mixed in the calculated ratio with constant stirring. In finally no precipitate was observed. Then about 25 mL of an ethanolic solution of heterocyclic amine bases (*e.g.*, 2 mmol of quinoline, *iso*-quinoline, pyridine, 4-picoline and 1 mmol of 2- aminopyridine) was added to the resulting solution on the hot plate at 70°C with constant stirring. Volume of the solution was reduced to an half and allowed to cool at room temperature slowly. Precipitate was formed and then it was filtered, washed several times with ethanol. Finally synthesized sample was dried in desiccator over anhydrous CaCl₂ and was stored in a sample vial for further investigation.

3.3 Physical Measurements

3.3.1 Weighing

The weighing of the chemicals and samples at different stages were performed on a AND GH-200 electronic balance.

3.3.2 Melting Point Measurement

Melting point of the ligands and complexes were obtained with an electrothermal melting point apparatus model No. AZ 6512.

3.3.3 Conductivity Measurement

Conductivity measurements of the present complexes were carried out in N,N'dimethyl formamide (DMF). The conductivity, *viz.*, the molar conductivities were calculated using the formula:

$$\lambda = \frac{100}{C} \times \text{cell constant} \times \text{Observed conductivity.}$$

10⁻³ M solutions of the complexes were employed for this purpose. The electrical conductance measurements were made at room temperature using a WPACM35

Experimental III 17

conductivity meter and a dip-cell with platinized electrodes. The cell was calibrated with 0.01N, 0.001N and 0.0001N potassium chloride solution and it had a cell constant of 1.065. The conductance of the pure solvent was determined.

3.3.4 Magnetic Measurements

Magnetic measurements have been carried out in a Sherwood Scientific magnetic susceptibility balance at room temperature.

Working Principle of the Balance

The SHERWOOD SCIENTIFIC magnetic susceptibility Balance is the result of collaboration with Professor D.F. Evens of Imperial College, London and is designed as a replacement for a traditional Gouy balance system. The Even's method uses the same configuration as the Gouy method but instead of measuring the force which a magnet exerts on the sample, the equal and opposite force which the sample exerts on a suspended permanent magnet is observed.

The M.S.B. works on the basis of a stationary sample and moving magnets. The pairs of magnets are placed at opposite ends of a beam placing the system in balance. Introduction of the sample between the poles of one pair of magnets produces a deflection of the beam which is registered by means of photo transistor. A current is made to pass through a coil mounted between the poles of the other pair of magnets, producing a force restoring the system to balance. At the position of equilibrium, the current through the coil is proportional to the force exerted on the sample, and can be measured as a voltage drop.

The following general expression for mass susceptibility χ_g in CGS units may be derived in the same manner as for the traditional Gouy method.

$$\chi_{g} = \frac{1}{M} \left[C(R - R_0) + V_{air} A \right]$$

where,

C = Constant of proportionality

R = reading obtained for tube plus sample

 R_0 = the empty tube reading

I = sample length (cm)

M = weight of the sample (g)

 V_{air} = volume susceptibility of the displaced air. For powder samples the air correction turm V_{air} A may normally be ignored.

C, the constant of proportionality is related to the calibration constant of a given balance by the formula.

$$C = \frac{C_{bal}}{10^9}$$

Hence the mass susceptibility, χ_g is calculated by using:

Calibration of the Balance

The magnetic susceptibility balance must be calibrated at its intended work place. The balance is to be used mainly for solid sample, then as calibrant $Hg[Co(SCN)_4]$ was used with some of the systematic errors in packing.

Procedure:

- The zero knob of the magnetic susceptibility balance was turned until numerical display shows zero and was inserted calibration sample, HgCo(SCN)₄ into sample holder. It was allowed reading in numerical display to settle.
- 2. Reading was recorded and calibration constant C_{bal} was calibrated from the formula.

$$C_{bal} = \frac{C_{tube}}{(R - R_0)}$$

Experimental III 19

The constancy of the calibration was checked using a sealed off sample of $MnCl_2$ solution.

Calculation of Results:

The values of diamagnetic correction for the tube was added or subtracted from the observed weight depending upon whether the substance under investigation has positive or negative value of F respectively. The molar susceptibility χ_M was calculated directly by multiplying equation (1) with the molecular weight of the sample substances. The χ_M was corrected introducing the diamagnetic correction terms given in table 3.3.

The magnetic moments μ in Bohr-magneton were calculated. As the measurements of magnetic susceptibilities were made at about constant temperature, Curie-law was used and was calculated from the equation.

Thus μ_{eff} obtained is known as effective magnetic moment. All the values and weight were expressed in C.G.S. units.

Elements/Molecules	Pascal's Const. Value $\chi_M \times 10^{-6}$ mole ⁻¹
Н	-2.93
С	-6.00
C (In benzene ring)	-0.24
N (Open chain)	-6.57
N (ring)	-4.61
0	-4.61
S	-15
H ₂ O	-13

Table 3.3: Pascal's constant for the elements and molecules
3.4 Analytical

3.4.1 Analysis for Carbon, Hydrogen and Nitrogen

Analyses of the complexes for carbon, hydrogen and nitrogen were carried out by LECO CHEM-932 organic elemental analyzer, University Kebangsaan Malaysia.

3.4.2 Determination Palladium (II)

A known weight (about 0.2g) of the complex of Pd was treated with concentrated H_2SO_4 (5 cm³) and concentrated HNO₃ (20 cm³) and the mixture was evaporated to dryness. Finally HClO₄ (72%, 20 cm³) was added and evaporated again to dryness. Then the residue was dissolved in distilled water (250 cm³) and the metal content was determined complexometrically¹¹³⁻¹¹⁴. The process was repeated three times and the average result was taken.

3.4.3 Determination of Platinum

A known weight (about 0.05g) of the complex of Pt was treated with concentrated H_2SO_4 (5 cm³) and concentrated HNO₃ (20 cm³) and the mixture was evaporated to dryness. Finally HClO₄ (72%, 20 cm³) was added and evaporated again to dryness. Then the residue was dissolved in distilled water (250 cm³) and the metal content was determined complexometrically¹¹³⁻¹¹⁴. The process was repeated three times and the average result was taken.

3.4.4 Infrared Spectra

Infrared spectra were recorded on FTIR spectrophotometer (IR-Prestrige-21) in the region 4500-400 cm⁻¹ using KBr pellets at the Department of Chemistry, University of Dhaka.

The samples were put in an agate mortar, thoroughly powdered with potassium bromide and then transferred in a mini-disc holder and a disc was made by automatic hydraulic press. The KBr disc was mounted in the sample cavity of the machine. The spectra were calibrated against 1601.8 cm⁻¹ peak of the polystyrene film. The tentative

Experimental [2] 21

band assignments of the important IR bands of the various complexes and the concerning ligands have been made empirically on the basis of some standard books.

3.4.5 Electronic Spectra

The electronic spectra were run on a SHIMADZU UV-2550 spectrophotometer. A tungsten lamp was used for visible region while a deuterium lamp was used for UV-region. The instrument can perform absorbance, transmittance, concentration, rate kinetics and standard curve determination at wavelengths from 190 to 800 nm.

The visible and UV spectroscopy is a simple but powerful tool which gives information on the geometries of the complexes. In a typical transition by metal complexes, the observed spectrum in general, consists of a series of crystal field bands which are in the visible region and depends on the donor atom of the ligand and on the metal ion.

The crystal field transitions are of two types, one is the intense spin-allowed transitions and another is the lower intensity spin-forbidden transitions, which appear as shoulders on the spin allowed transitions. The ultraviolet spectrum is complicated and consists of electronic transitions between the ligand and the metal (charge transfer), and also transitions within the ligand itself which are usually $\pi - \pi^*$ or $\sigma - \pi^*$ transitions. The bands in the electronic spectra represent different vibrational transition according to the electronic charge; each band is made up of a number of fine lines due to the change in rotational energy superposed on the electronic and vibrational energy changes.

3.5 Antibacterial Activity

The bacteria (test organisms) were collected from microbiology laboratory, Fish Inspection & Quality Control, Department of Fisheries, Khulna, Bangladesh. All steps of the work were carried out at this laboratory.

The complexes were screened for antibacterial activity against *Pseudomonas* aeruginosa (Gram negative), *Salmonella bovismorbificans* (Gram-negative), *Salmonella typhi* (Gram-negative), *Escherichia coli* (Gram-negative), *Listeria*

Experimental D 22

monocytogenes (Gram-positive), *Staphylococcus aureus* (Gram-positive), *Enterococcus faecalis* (Gram-positive). The activities were carried out with the help of disc diffusion technique ¹¹⁵⁻¹¹⁶. Each disc contained 50 μ g of compound and it was placed on bacteria inoculated plates. The growth inhibition results were compared with standard antibiotics, Kanamycin.

3.5.1 Culture media

The instant nutrient agar medium was weighed (28 grams), dispersed in one liter of distilled water and allowed soaking for 10 minutes. Swirled to mix and autoclaved at 15 Ib/(inch)² (figure 3.1.) pressure at 121°C. After this, the medium was cooled at 47°C.



Figure-3.1: Sterilization of media in the autoclave

3.5.2 Preparation of fresh culture

50 mL of medium was poured in a test tube. The test microorganisms of pure culture were streaked on the nutrient media with the help of sterile loop in an aseptic condition as shown in figure 3.2 and incubated at 37°C for 24 hours. The culture thus obtained was considered fresh culture. Fresh culture of this type was always used throughout the sensitivity testing.

Experimental 23



Figure-3.2: Preparation of fresh culture

3.5.3 Preparation of plates

The medium was poured into sterile petridishes in an aseptic condition on a level horizontal surface so as to give a uniform depth of approximately 4 mm and has been shown in figure 3.3. Then the medium had been allowed to cool to room temperature in order to solidify the medium.



Figure-3.3: Preparation of plate

3.5.4 Preparation of discs

Sterile filter paper discs were taken and the test material of known concentration was applied on the discs with the help of a micropipette as shown in figure 3.4. The solvents from the discs were evaporated by hot air blower. In the similar way control discs (containing only the solvents) were also prepared.



Figure-3.4: Preparation of disc

3.5.5 Placement of the discs and incubation

The solidified agar plates were seeded with 70 μ L of fresh culture with the help of a micropipette and spread the micro organisms with the help of a sterile spreader in an aseptic condition.

The prepared discs of samples were placed gently on the freshly seeded solidified agar plates with a sterile forceps (Shown in figure 3.5). Standard discs and control discs were also placed on the test plates to compare their effect with tested samples.

Experimental III 25



Figure-3.5: Placement of disc on solidified agar plate

Then the plates were kept in a refrigerator at 4°C for 24 hours in order that the materials had sufficient time to diffuse to a considerable area of the plates. After this, the plates were incubated at 37°C for 16 hours (as shown in figure 3.6).



Figure-3.6: Incubation of plate

3.5.6 Calculation of the zone of inhibition

After incubation, the diameter of the zone of inhibition were observed and measured in mm by a transparent scale. Show in Figure 3.7



Figure-3.7: Calculation of the zone of inhibition

3.6 Purification of the Solvents

(i) Ethanol

A dry round bottomed flask 2.0L was fitted with a double surface condenser and a calcium chloride drying tube. Clean dry magnesium turnings (5.0 g) and iodine (0.5 g) were placed in the round-bottomed flask followed by 75 mL of commercial absolute ethanol. The mixture was warmed until the iodine had disappeared. Heating was continued until all the magnesium was converted into ethoxide, then 900 mL of absolute ethanol was added and the mixture was refluxed for one hour. After cooling the ethanol was distilled of directly into a vessel in which it was stored, by resembling the condenser for downward distillation via a splash head adapter. Then the ethanol was stored and was used.

(ii) Acetone

The acetone was heated under reflux with successive quantity of potassium per manganese until the violet colored persisted. It was then dried with anhydrous

potassium carbonate, filtered from the desiccant and distilled. Precaution was taken to exclude moisture, *i.e.*, a calcium chloride guard tube was used.

3.7.1 Synthesis of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pt (IV) Ion with Malonic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines (complex 1-4)

A 25 mL of ethanolic solution of the metal salt (PtH₂Cl₆) (1 mmol) and 30 mL ethanolic solution of malonic acid (2 mmol) (for complex 1-4) was mixed with constant stirring. No precipitate was observed. Then 25 mL of an ethanolic solution of 2 mmol of heterocyclic amine bases *e.g.*, quinoline (for complex 1), *iso*-quinoline (for complex 2), pyridine (for complex 3) and 4-picoline (for complex 4) was added to the resulting solution placed on a hot plate at 70°C with constant stirring. The volume of the solution was reduced to an half and allowed to be cooled to room temperature slowly. The precipitates were formed and were filtered, washed several time with ethanol. Finally synthesized sample was dried in desiccator over anhydrous CaCl₂ and was stored in a sample vial for further investigation.

3.7.2 Synthesis of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pt (IV) Ion with Oxalic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines (complex 5-8)

A 25 mL of ethanolic solution of the metal salt (PtH₂Cl₆) (1 mmol) and 30 mL ethanolic solution of oxalic acid (2 mmol) (for complex 5-8) was mixed with constant stirring. No precipitate was observed in the solution. Then 25 mL of an ethanolic solution of 2 mmol of heterocyclic amine bases e.g., quinoline (for complex 5), *iso*-quinoline (for complex 6), pyridine (for complex 7) and 4-picoline (for complex 8) was added to the resulting solution on a hot plate at 70°C with constant stirring. The volume of the solution was reduced to an half and allowed to be cooled to room temperature slowly. The precipitates were formed and were filtered, washed several time with ethanol. Finally synthesized sample was dried in desiccator over anhydrous CaCl₂ and was stored in a sample vial for further investigation.

Experimental III 28

3.7.3 Synthesis of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pd (II) and Pt (II) Ions with Phthalic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines (complex 9-13)

A 25 mL of ethanolic solution of the metal(II) salt {Pd(II) (for complex 9-12) and Pt(II) (for complex 13) } was added to an ethanolic solution (30mL) of phthalic acid (1 mmol) (for complex 9-13), No precipitate was observed. Then 20 mL of an ethanolic solution of heterocyclic amine bases *e.g.*, 2 mmol of, quinoline (for complex 9), *iso*-quinoline (for complex 10), pyridine (for complex 11), 4-picoline(for complex 13) and 1 mmol of 2-apy (for complex 12), was added to the resulting solution on a hot plate at 70°C with constant stirring. The volume of the solution was reduced to an half and allowed to be cooled to room temperature slowly. The precipitates were formed and were filtered, washed several time with ethanol. Finally synthesized sample was dried in desiccator over anhydrous CaCl₂ and was stored in a sample vial for further investigation.

3.7.4 Synthesis of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pd (II) Ion with Oxalic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines (complex 14-17)

A 25 mL of ethanolic solution of the metal salt (PdCl₂) (1 mmol) and 30 mL ethanolic solution oxalic acid (1 mmol) (for complex 14-17) was mixed with constant stirring. No precipitate was observed in the solution. Then 25 mL of an ethanolic solution of heterocyclic amine bases *e.g.*, 2 mmol of quinoline (for complex 14), *iso*-quinoline (for complex 15), pyridine (for complex 16) and 1 mmol of 2-aminopyridine (for complex 17) was added to the resulting solution on a hot plate at 70°C with constant stirring. The volume of the solution was reduced to an half and allowed to be cooled to room temperature slowly. The precipitates were formed and were filtered, washed several time with ethanol. Finally synthesized sample was dried in desiccator over anhydrous CaCl₂ and was stored in a sample vial for further investigation.



		Results and Discussion 1
(Character Male	rization of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pt (IV) Ion with onic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines [Complex 1-4]
	4.1.1	Physical Properties
	4.1.1.1	Solubility
	4.1.1.2	Color & Melting point
tent	4.1.1.3	Conductivity Measurement
Con	4.1.1.4	Magnetic Moment Measurement
0	4.1.2	Elemental Analysis
	4.1.3	Infrared Spectra Studies
	4.1.4	Electronic Spectra Studies

Mixed ligand complexes of Pt(IV) ion with malonic acid (MOH₂) as primary and heterocyclic amines, *viz.* quinoline (Q), *iso*-quinoline (IQ), pyridine (Py) and 4-pico (4-picoline) as secondary ligands have been synthesized and characterized by several physico-chemical and spectroscopic analysis. Complexes of Pt(IV) ion with malonic acid (MOH₂) and heterocyclic amines were synthesized by a very simple experimental method; in ethanolic solution at room temperature as discussed in chapter III. It is revealed that the syntheses of all the complexes of Pt(IV) followed the following general chemical reactions.

Pt H₂Cl₆ + 2 MAH₂ \rightarrow [Pt⁴⁺ + 2MA⁻ + 6H⁺ + 6Cl⁻] (Resulting Solution)

 $[Pt^{4+} + 2MA^{-} + 6H^{+} + 6Cl^{-}] + 2L \rightarrow [Pt(MA)_2L_2] + 6HCl$ (For complexes 1-4)

where, MAH_2 =malonic acid L = monodented base, *viz.*, quinoline, Q (for complex 1), *iso*-quinoline, IQ (for complex 2), pyridine, Py (for complex 3), 4-picoline, 4-pico (for complex 4). Physico-chemical properties, elemental analysis, magnetic and spectroscopic data were used to propose probable structures, and the complexes are reported here for the first time.

4.1.1 Physical Properties4.1.1.1 Solubility

Solubility of a compound depends on the mode of interaction between solute and solvent molecules (*e.g.*, dipole-dipole interaction, lattice energy, lattice enthalpy, solvation energy, temperature and pressure). A compound will be soluble only when the lattice enthalpy is lower than the solvation energy. The solubility of the complexes was examined in the usual

Results and Discussion 31

manner. The complexes were all slightly soluble in water and methanol but are soluble in DMF and DMSO (table 4.1.1).

iplex o.	Complexes	Wa	iter	Meth	anol	DN	ЛF	DM	ISO
Com	complexes	Cold	Hot	Cold	Hot	Cold	Hot	Cold	Hot
1	$[Pt(IV)(MA)_2(Q)_2]$	+/-	+/-	+/-	+/-	+	+	+	+
2	[Pt(IV)(MA) ₂ (IQ) ₂]	+/-	+/-	+/-	+/-	+	+	+	+
3	$[Pt(IV)(MA)_2(Py)_2]$	+/-	+/-	+/-	+/-	+	+	+	+
4	$[Pt(IV)(MA)_2(4-pico)_2]$	+/-	+/-	+/-	+/-	+	+	+	+

Table 4.1.1: Solubility of the synthesized complexes

Here, +/- = Slightly soluble and + = Soluble

4.1.1.2 Color & Melting point

All the synthesized complexes (complex 1-4) are colored amorphous powder. Single crystal of the complexes could not be isolated from any solution. Complexes 1 and 3 *i.e.*, Pt(IV) with (malonic acid + quinoline) and (malonic acid + pyridine) are orange in colored but Complexes 2 and 4 *i.e.*, Pt(IV) with (malonic acid + *iso*-quinoline) and (malonic acid + 4-picoline) are yellow-orange in colored (shown in table 4.1.2). Melting point of complex-1, Pt(IV)(MA)₂(Q)₂ is 268 \pm 5°C while the melting point of the ligands, malonic acid is 135-136°C and quinoline is -15°C which indicates the strong indication of coordination of the ligands and formation of the complex. Similarly for the melting point of complex-2 is 255 \pm 5°C while that for *iso*-quinoline is 26-28°C melting point of complex-3 is 260 \pm 5°C while that for 4-picoline is 2.4°C and melting point of the complex. Data for the melting points of the complexes has been tabulated in table 4.1.2.

4.1.1.3 Conductivity Measurement

The molar conductance values were measured in *N*,*N*'-dimethyl formamide. The conductance values of the complexes were in the range (10.35–12.60) Ω^{-1} cm² mole⁻¹ indicated that these complexes were non-electrolyte in nature^{11, 14}. The conductance values are given in table 4.1.2.

4.1.1.4 Magnetic Moment Measurement

The magnetic moment values of the synthesized complexes indicated that these complexes are diamagnetic (table 4.1.2). This diamagnetism is supported by the small negative values obtained for their magnetic susceptibility. It appears from the magnetic moment data that the complexes of Pt(IV) ion display diamagnetic property and an octahedral geometry^{14, 61-62} with d^2sp^3 hybridization. The following schematic diagram represents the hybridization in the complexes (1-4).



 Table 4.1.2: Physical properties of the complexes

Complex No.	Complexes	Color	Melting point or decomposition temperature (± 5°C)	Molar conductance (ohm ⁻¹ cm ² mol ⁻¹)	magnetic moment
1	$[Pt(IV)(MA)_2(Q)_2]$	Orange	268	10.35	Dia
2	$[Pt(IV)(MA)_2(IQ)_2]$	Yellow Orange	255	12.60	Dia
3	$[Pt(IV)(MA)_2(Py)_2]$	Orange	260	11.85	Dia
4	[Pt(IV)(MA) ₂ (4-pico) ₂]	Yellow Orange	258	10.60	Dia

Here, Dia = Diamagnetic, MA = Deprotonated malonic acid, Q = quinoline, IQ = iso-quinoline, Py = pyridine and 4-pico = 4-picoline.

4.1.2 Elemental Analysis

Elemental analysis is the prime tool for the formulation of a new chemical species. The formulations of the synthesized complexes were done on the basis of elemental analysis. Elemental analyses of the synthesized mixed ligand complexes were performed for platinum, carbon, hydrogen and nitrogen. The microanalysis of carbon, hydrogen and nitrogen were carried out by an organic elemental analyzer. Platinum was determined by weighing as the oxide produced by direct ignition. The elemental analyses data of the complexes are given in table 4.1.3. It is seen that the analytical data are in good agreement with the proposed empirical formula of the present complexes.

Com.	Yields	Metal		Carbon %		Hydrogen %		Nitrogen %	
INO.	%	Calculated	Found	Calculated	Found	Calculated	Found	Calculated	Found
1	67	29.67	29.70	43.83	43.80	2.76	2.85	4.26	4.25
2	65	29.67	29.65	43.83	43.78	2.76	2.82	4.26	4.27
3	78	35.00	34.91	34.47	34.52	2.53	2.55	5.03	5.03
4	76	33.33	33.28	36.92	37.02	3.10	3.21	4.79	4.78

Table 4.1.3: Elemental analyses of the complexes

4.1.3 Infrared Spectra Studies

In the Infrared spectra two strong bands at ~1737.9 cm⁻¹ for asymmetric stretching of v(C=O) and at ~1436.9 cm⁻¹ for symmetric stretching of v(C=O) revealed the presence of free carboxylic group of malonic acid. Upon coordination or chelation of carboxylic group to central metal ions both these v(C=O) bands shifted to relatively shorter frequencies. It is seen that two new bands relating to the asymmetric stretching [v(OCO)asym] and symmetric stretching [v(OCO)sym] shifted in the regions 1704.1–1708.9 cm⁻¹ and 1373.3–1410.9 cm⁻¹ respectively. The shifting of these two infrared bands of can strongly be attributed to coordination of the carboxylic group as well as the formation of the complexes¹¹⁷⁻¹¹⁸.

The magnitude of the separation between these two bands [Δ (OCO) cm⁻¹] has been used, tentatively, as a help in the determination of the nature of the carboxylate coordination¹¹⁸.

$\Delta(OCO) = [v(OCO)asym - v(OCO)sym] cm^{-1}$

Characterization of the coordination mode of carboxylate based on the IR spectrum of the metal complex has been discussed previously by Deacon and Philips¹¹⁹. Coordination modes were classified as (1) Ionic acetates (*e.g.* those of alkali metals having Δ (OCO) values of *ca.* 165 cm⁻¹ and for ionic trifluoroacetates, the Δ (OCO) value was *ca.* 235 cm⁻¹); (2) Δ (OCO) values <105 cm⁻¹ indicating symmetric chelating carboxylate coordination; complexes in which the carboxylates bridge metal–metal bonds may also exhibit values in this region; (3) Δ (OCO) values substantially less than the ionic values (<150 cm⁻¹) indicating the presence of chelating or bridging carboxylates; monodentate carboxylates containing hydrogen bonds may also fall into this category; (4) Δ (OCO) values of transition metal complexes similar to that of ionic acetates (*ca.* 165 cm⁻¹) were found to be untrustworthy as many examples of each type of coordination mode were found in this category; and (5) Δ (OCO) values of >200

Results and Discussion 34

cm⁻¹ indicate monodentate coordination. This large difference in energy is thought to arise from the bonding of one oxygen atom to the metal with the other oxygen-free, increasing the energy of the asymmetric stretching mode. There have been many contradictions to the Δ (OCO) assignments¹¹⁹⁻¹²⁰, primarily concerned with locating the exact position of the Δ (OCO)sym absorption band, and, as such, great care is required when using these guidelines. Tentative assignments for the coordination modes of carboxylate ligands (malonate) with Pt(IV) based on Δ (OCO) values, are listed in table 4.1.4.

The v(OCO) asym mode of Pt(IV) complexes of malonate is found as a very strong-to-strong band at 1704.1–1708.9 cm⁻¹, and the corresponding v(OCO) sym one is exhibited at 1373.3–1410.9 cm⁻¹. As the two v(OCO) stretching symmetrical and asymmetrical lie lower than the free ion values and the frequency difference between these two modes is 293.2–333.7 cm⁻¹, it becomes evident that the carboxylate group acts as monodentate ligand¹¹⁷⁻¹¹⁹. Further, the presence of M–O (O = Oxygen in deprotonated malonic acid) bonding is evident from the appearance of vM–O modes at 505.4-557.4 cm⁻¹.

The characteristic ring vibration of the heterocyclic amines in the range 1400-1600 cm⁻¹ generally show significant changes on complexation but in our present complexes these bands could not be distinguished because of overlapping with $v_{C=0}$ and v_{C-0} stretching bands. The in-plane and out-plane ring deformation modes of the heterocyclic amines observed at ~520 and ~720 cm⁻¹ respectively undergo a positive shift in mixed ligand complexes conforming thereby a co-ordination through nitrogen. The presence of M–N bonding in the complexes is evident from the appearance of v_{M-N} modes at 460.0–476.4 cm⁻¹ in the spectra of the complexes. Major I.R. spectral data for the complexes are given in table 4.1.4.

Com.	v(OH)	v(OCO)	v(OCO)	Δ(OCO)	v(M-O)	v(M-N)
No.		asym (cm ⁻¹)	sym (cm^{-1})	(cm^{-1})	(cm^{-1})	(cm^{-1})
1	-	1704.1	1410.9	293.2	557.4	476.4
2	-	1708.9	1400.0	308.9	510.0	460.0
3		1707.0	1390.0	317.0	510.0	4650
4	1 13	1707.0	1373.3	333.7	505.4	470.0

4.1.4 Electronic Spectra Studies

The survey of the existing literature reveals that the complexes of $5d^6$ metal ions are generally diamagnetic in nature. The absorption spectra of diamagnetic octahedrally coordinated d^6 metal ion complexes give rise to two spin-allowed ${}^{1}T_{1g}$ and ${}^{1}T_{2g}$ and two spin forbidden ${}^{3}T_{1g}$ and ${}^{3}T_{2g}$ excited states. Three d-d transitions have been observed in the spectra of each Pt(IV) compound. These are spin-allowed bands involving transition ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}T_{1g}$ and ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}T_{2g}$ and the third one (every broad spin-prohibited) is due to ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{3}T_{1g}$. These three bands were obtained in the case of our complexes are given in table 4.1.5. By using the descent-in-symmetry method, the following three equations may be given corresponding to these three transitions.

$$10 \text{ Dq} - \text{C} = ({}^{1}\text{A}_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}\text{T}_{1g})\Delta\text{E}$$
$$10 \text{ Dq} + 16 \text{ B} - \text{C} = ({}^{1}\text{A}_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}\text{T}_{2g})\Delta\text{E}$$
$$10 \text{ Dq} - 3\text{C} = ({}^{1}\text{A}_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{3}\text{T}_{1g})\Delta\text{E}$$

Complex	Spect	tral band (cm ⁻¹) with assign	ment
No	$^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow ^{3}T_{1g}$	$^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow ^{1}T_{1g}$	$^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow ^{1}T_{2g}$
1	19055	27040	35200
2	18988	26992	35140
3	19022	27000	35300
4	19000	27030	35000

Table 4.1.5: Electronic spectral data (cm⁻¹) of octahedral platinum (IV) complexes

In addition to the d-d transitions, the Pt(IV) complexes obtained two charge transfer bands at 39000 and 50000 cm⁻¹. These have been assigned as ligand to metal charge transfer band, since empty ligand orbitals are expected to be at energies too high to participate to any extent in bonding. All these bands are consistent with the octahedral stereochemistry of Pt(IV) compounds^{14, 61-62}.

From the above discussion, it is evident that the synthesized Pt(IV) complexes are Octahedral in structure and the probable structures of the complexes have been shown in figures 4.1.1-4.1.4.



Figure 4.1.1(a): Probable structure of the complex-1, [Pt(IV)(MA)₂(Q)₂]







Figure 4.1.2(a): Probable structure of the complex-2, [Pt(IV)(MA)₂(IQ)₂]



Figure 4.1.2(b): Probable ball and stick model of the complex-2, [Pt(IV)(MA)₂(IQ)₂]







Figure 4.1.3(b): Probable ball and stick model of the complex-3, [Pt(IV)(MA)₂(Py)₂]



Figure 4.1.4(a): Probable structure of the complex-4, [Pt(IV)(MA)₂(4-Pico)₂]





		Results and Discussion 2
Char	acterizati A	on of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pt (IV) Ion with Oxalic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines [Complex 5-8]
	4.2.1	Physical Properties
	4.2.1.1	Solubility
	4.2.1.2	Color & Melting point
tent	4.2.1.3	Conductivity Measurement
Con	4.2.1.4	Magnetic Moment Measurement
	4.2.2	Elemental Analysis
	4.2.3	Infrared Spectra Studies
	4.2.4	Electronic Spectra Studies

Mixed ligand complexes of Pt(IV) ion with oxalic acid (OXH₂) as primary and heterocyclic amines, *viz.* quinoline (Q), *iso*-quinoline (IQ), pyridine (Py) and 4-pico(4-picoline) as secondary ligands have been synthesized and characterized by several physico-chemical and spectroscopic analysis. Complexes of Pt(IV) ion with oxalic acid (OXH₂) and heterocyclic amines were synthesized by a very simple experimental method; in ethanolic solution at room temperature as discussed in chapter III. It is revealed that the syntheses of all the complexes of Pt (IV) followed the following general chemical reactions.

Pt H₂Cl₆ + 2 OXH₂ \rightarrow [Pt⁴⁺ + 2OX⁻ + 6H⁺ + 6Cl⁻] (Resulting Solution) [Pt⁴⁺ + 2OX⁻ + 6H⁺ + 6Cl⁻] + 2L \rightarrow [Pt(OX)₂L₂] + 6HCl (For complexes 5-8)

where, OXH_2 =oxalic acid L = monodented base, *viz.*, quinoline, Q (for complex 1), *iso*quinoline, IQ (for complex 2), pyridine, Py (for complex 3), 4-picoline, 4-pico (for complex 4). Physico-chemical properties, elemental analysis, magnetic and spectroscopic data were used to propose probable structures, and the complexes are reported here for the first time.

4.2.1 Physical Properties

4.2.1.1 Solubility

Solubility of a compound depends on the mode of interaction between solute and solvent molecules (*e.g.*, dipole-dipole interaction, lattice energy, lattice enthalpy, solvation energy, temperature and pressure). A compound will be soluble only when the lattice enthalpy is lower than the solvation energy. The solubility of the complexes was examined in the usual manner. The complexes were all slightly soluble in water and methanol but are soluble in DMF and DMSO.(table 4.2.1)

plex 0.	Complexes	Water		Methanol		DMF		DMSO	
Com	complexes	Cold	Hot	Cold	Hot	Cold	Hot	Cold	Hot
5	[Pt(IV)(OX) ₂ (Q) ₂]	+/-	+/-	+/-	+/-	+	+	+	+
6	[Pt(IV)(OX) ₂ (IQ) ₂]	+/-	+/-	+/-	+/-	+	+	+	+
7	[Pt(IV)(OX) ₂ (Py) ₂]	+/-	+/-	+/-	+/-	+	+	+	+
8	[Pt(IV)(OX) ₂ (4-pico) ₂]	+/-	+/-	+/-	+/-	+	+	+	+

 Table 4.2.1: Solubility of the synthesized complexes

Here, +/- = Slightly soluble and + = Soluble

4.2.1.2 Color & Melting point

All the synthesized complexes (complex 5-8) are colored amorphous powder. Single crystal of the complexes could not be isolated from any solution. Complex 5, Pt(IV) with (oxalic acid + quinoline) is orange in colored , Complexes 6 and 7 *i.e.*, Pt(IV) with (oxalic acid + *iso*-quinoline) and (oxalic acid + pyridine) are yellow in colored & Complex 8, Pt(IV) with (oxalic acid + 4-picoline) is yellow-orange in colored (shown in table 4.2.2). Melting point of complex-5, Pt(IV)(OX)₂(Q)₂ is $260\pm$ 5°C while the melting point of the ligands, oxalic acid is 102-103°C and quinoline is -15°C which indicates the strong indication of coordination of the

Results and Discussion 42

ligands and formation of the complex. Similarly for the melting point of complex-6 is $240\pm$ 5°C while that for *iso*-quinoline is 26-28°C melting point of complex-7 is $265\pm$ 5°C while that for pyridine is -41.8°C and melting point of complex-8 is $270\pm$ 5°C while that for 4-picoline is 2.4°C also indicate the formation of the complexes. Data for the melting points of the complexes has been tabulated in table 4.2.2.

4.2.1.3 Conductivity Measurement

The molar conductance were measured in N, N'-dimethyl formamide. The conductance values of the complexes were in the range (10.60 – 12.85) Ω^{-1} cm² mole⁻¹ indicated that these complexes were non-electrolyte in nature^{11,14}. The conductance values are given in table 4.2.2

4.2.1.4 Magnetic Moment Measurement

The magnetic moment values of the synthesized complexes indicated that these complexes are diamagnetic (table 4.2.2). This diamagnetism is supported by the small negative values obtained for their magnetic susceptibility. It appears from the magnetic moment data that the complexes of Pt(IV) ion display diamagnetic property and an octahedral geometry^{14, 61-62} with d^2sp^3 hybridization. The following schematic diagram represents the hybridization in the complexes (5-9).



Results and Discussion 43

Complexes No.	Complexes	Color	Melting point or decomposition temperature (± 5°C)	Molar conductance (ohm ⁻¹ cm ² mol ⁻¹)	magnetic moment
5	[Pt(IV)(OX) ₂ (Q) ₂]	Orange	260	10.85	Dia
6	[Pt(IV)(OX) ₂ (IQ) ₂]	Yellow	240	11.65	Dia
7	$[Pt(IV)(OX)_2(Py)_2]$	Yellow	265	12.85	Dia
8	[Pt(IV)(OX) ₂ (4-pico) ₂]	Yellow Orange	270	10.60	Dia

Table 4.2.2: Physical properties of the complexes

where, Dia = Diamagnetic, OX = Deprotonated oxalic acid, Q=quinoline, IQ= *iso*quinoline, Py=pyridine, 4-pico=4-picoline.

4.2.2 Elemental Analysis

Elemental analysis is the prime tool for the formulation of a new chemical species. The formulations of the synthesized complexes were done on the basis of elemental analysis. Elemental analyses of the synthesized mixed ligand complexes were performed for platinum, carbon, hydrogen and nitrogen. The microanalysis of carbon, hydrogen and nitrogen were carried out by an organic elemental analyzer. Platinum was determined by weighing as the oxide produced by direct ignition. The elemental analyses data of the complexes are given in table 4.2.3. It is seen that the analytical data are in good agreement with the proposed empirical formula of the present complexes.

Com.	Yields	Metal %		Carbon %		Hydrogen %		Nitrogen %	
NO.	%	Calculated	Found	Calculated	Found	Calculated	Found	Calculated	Found
5	65	31.00	30.90	41.97	42.04	2.24	2.28	4.45	4.48
6	62	31.00	31.08	41.97	41.88	2.24	2.33	4.45	4.45
7	71	36.86	36.90	31.76	31.76	1.90	2.01	5.30	5.35
8	74	35.00	35.00	34.47	34.55	2.53	2.52	5.03	5.00

Table 4.2.3: Elemental analyses of the complexes

4.2.3 Infrared Spectra Studies

The position of the strong C=O absorption band in the carboxylic acid group of the free carboxylic acid of oxalic acid, 1692.5 cm⁻¹ and 1441.8 cm⁻¹. Upon chelating to center metal ions, this v(C=O) band shifted or disappears and two new bands relating to the asymmetric [v(OCO)asym] and symmetric [v(OCO)sym] stretches appear in the regions 1600.0–1606.6 and 1377.1–1393.5 cm⁻¹, respectively¹¹⁷⁻¹¹⁸. The magnitude of the separation between these two bands [$\Delta(OCO)$ cm⁻¹] has been used, tentatively, as a help in the determination of the nature of the carboxylate coordination¹¹⁸.

$\Delta(OCO) = [v(OCO)asym - v(OCO)sym] cm^{-1}$

Characterization of the coordination mode of carboxylate based on the IR spectrum of the metal complex has been discussed previously by Deacon and Philips¹¹⁹. Coordination modes were classified as (1) Ionic acetates (e.g. those of alkali metals) having $\Delta(OCO)$ values of ca. 165 cm⁻¹ (for ionic trifluoroacetates, the Δ (OCO) value was ca. 235 cm⁻¹); (2) Δ (OCO) values <105 cm⁻¹ indicating symmetric chelating carboxylate coordination; complexes in which the carboxylates bridge short metal-metal bonds may also exhibit values in this region; (3) Δ (OCO) values substantially less than the ionic values (<150 cm⁻¹) indicating the presence of chelating or bridging carboxylates; monodentate carboxylates containing hydrogen bonds may also fall into this category; (4) Δ (OCO) values of transition metal complexes similar to that of ionic acetates (ca. 165 cm⁻¹) were found to be untrustworthy as many examples of each type of coordination mode were found in this category; and (5) Δ (OCO) values of >200 cm⁻¹ indicate monodentate coordination. This large difference in energy is thought to arise from the bonding of one oxygen atom to the metal with the other oxygen-free, increasing the energy of the asymmetric stretching mode. There have been many contradictions to the $\Delta(OCO)$ assignments¹¹⁹⁻¹²⁰, primarily concerned with locating the exact position of the Δ (OCO)sym absorption band, and, as such, great care is required when using

Results and Discussion 45

these guidelines. Tentative assignments for the coordination modes of carboxylate ligands (oxalate) with Pt(IV) based on Δ (OCO) values, are listed in table 4.2.4.

The v(OCO)asym mode of Pt(IV) complexes of oxalate is found as a very strong-to-strong band at 1600.0–1606.6 cm⁻¹, and the corresponding v(OCO)sym one is exhibited at 1377.1–1393.5 cm⁻¹. As the two v(OCO) stretching symmetrical and asymmetrical lie lower than the free ion values and the frequency difference between these two modes is 201.5–229.5 cm⁻¹, it becomes evident that the carboxylate group acts as a monodentate ligand¹¹⁷⁻¹¹⁹. Further, the presence of M–O (O = Oxygen in deprotonated oxalic acid) bonding is evident from the appearance of ν M–O modes at 500.0–519.8 cm⁻¹.

The characteristic ring vibration of the heterocyclic amines in the range 1400-1600 cm⁻¹ generally show significant changes on complexation but in our present complexes these bands could not be distinguished because of overlapping with $v_{C=0}$ and v_{C-0} stretching bands. The in-plane and out plane ring deformation modes of the heterocyclic amines observed at ~ 520 and ~ 720 cm⁻¹ respectively undergo a positive shift in mixed ligand complexes conforming thereby a co-ordination through nitrogen. The presence of M-N bonding in the complexes is evident form the appearance of v_{M-N} modes at 445.5 – 461.9 cm⁻¹ in the spectra of the complexes. Major I.R. spectral data for the complexes are given in table 4.2.4.

Com.	υ(OH)	υ(OCO)	υ(OCO)	Δ(OCO)	υ(M-O)	υ(M-N)
No.	_	asym	sym			
5	-	1600.0	1392.5	207.5	519.8	461.9
6	-	1595.0	1393.5	201.5	519.8	461.9
7	-	1600.0	1390.0	210.0	500.0	460.0
8	-	1606.6	1377.1	229.5	504.4	445.5

Table 4.2.4: Infrared spectral data of the complexes (cm⁻¹)

4.2.4 Electronic Spectra Studies

The survey of the existing literature reveals that the complexes of $5d^6$ metal ions are generally diamagnetic in nature. The absorption spectra of diamagnetic octahedrally coordinated d^6 metal ion complexes give rise to two spin-allowed ${}^{1}T_{1g}$ and ${}^{1}T_{2g}$ and two spin forbidden ${}^{3}T_{1g}$ and ${}^{3}T_{2g}$ excited states. Three d-d transitions have been observed in the spectra of each Pt(IV) compound. These are spin-allowed bands involving transition ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}T_{1g}$ and ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}T_{2g}$ and the third one (every broad spin-prohibited) is due to ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{3}T_{1g}$. These three bands were obtained in the case of our complexes are given in table 4.2.5. By using the descent-in-symmetry method, the following three equations may be given corresponding to these three transitions.

In addition to the d-d transitions, the Pt(IV) complexes obtained two charge transfer bands at 39050 and 50000 cm⁻¹. These have been assigned as ligand to metal charge transfer band, since empty ligand orbitals are expected to be at energies too high to participate to any extent in bonding. All these bands are consistent with the octahedral stereochemistry of Pt(IV) compound^{14, 61-62}.

Complex	Spectral band (cm ⁻¹) with assignment						
No.	$^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow ^{3}T_{1g}$	$^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow ^{1}T_{1g}$	$^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow ^{1}T_{2g}$				
5	19005	27075	35210				
6	18995	26980	35160				
7	19045	27065	35300				
8	19065	27040	35030				

Table 4.2.5: Electronic spectral data	(cm ⁻¹) of octahedral	platinum	(IV) complexes
---------------------------------------	-------------------	-----------------	----------	-----	-------------

From the above discussion, it is evident that the synthesized Pt(IV) complexes are Octahedral in structure and the probable structures of the complexes have been shown in figures 4.2.1-4.2.4.







Figure 4.2.1(b): Probable ball and stick model of the complex-5, [Pt(IV)(OX)₂(Q)₂]

























		Results and Discussion 3
Char	acterizat Phth	ion of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pd (II) & Pt(II) Ion with alic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines [Complex 9-13]
	4.3.1	Physical Properties
	4.3.1.1	Solubility
÷	4.3.1.2	Color & Melting point
ten	4.3.1.3	Conductivity Measurement
Cont	4.3.1.4	Magnetic Moment Measurement
	4.3.2	Elemental Analysis
	4.3.3	Infrared Spectra Studies
	4.3.4	Electronic Spectra Studies

Mixed ligand complexes of Pt(II) & Pd(II) ion with phthalic acid (PhH₂) as primary and heterocyclic amines, *viz.* quinoline (Q), *iso*-Quinoline (IQ), Pyridine (Py) and 4-picoline (4-pico) 2-aminopyridine (2apy) as secondary ligands have been synthesized and characterized by several physico-chemical and spectroscopic analysis. Complexes of Pt(II) & Pd(II) ion with phthalic acid (PhH₂) and heterocyclic amines were synthesized by a very simple experimental method; in ethanolic solution at room temperature as discussed in chapter III. It is revealed that the syntheses complexes of Pd(II) & Pt(II) followed the following general chemical reactions.

For Pd(II) complexes

 $PdCl_2 + PhH_2 \rightarrow [Pd^{2+} + Ph^{-} + 2H^{+} + 2Cl^{-}]$ (Resulting Solution)

 $[Pd^{2+} + Ph^{-} + 2H^{+} + 2Cl^{-}] + 2L \rightarrow [Pd(Ph)L_2] + 2HCl \qquad [For complexes 9-11]$

 $[Pd^{2+} + Ph^{-} + 2H^{+} + 2Cl + L^{1} \rightarrow [Pd(Ph)L^{1}] + 2HC1$ [For complexes 12]

For Pt(II) complexes

 $PtCl_2 + PhH_2 \rightarrow [Pt^{2+} + Ph^{-} + 2H^{+} + 2Cl^{-}]$ (Resulting Solution)

 $[Pd^{2+} + Ph^{-} + 2H^{+} + 2Cl^{-}] + 2L \rightarrow [Pt(Ph)L_2] + 2HCl \qquad [For complexes 13]$

where, PhH_2 = phthlic acid L = monodented base, *viz* – quinoline, Q (for complex 9), *iso*-quinoline, IQ (for complex 10), pyridine, Py (for complex 11), 4-picoline, 4-pico (for complex 13) L¹ = bidented base, 2-aminopyridine, 2apy (for complex 12). Physico-chemical

Results and Discussion 53

indicates the strong indication of coordination of the ligands and formation of the complex. Similarly for the melting point of complex-10 is $255\pm 5^{\circ}$ C while that for *iso*-quinoline is 26-28°C melting point of complex-11 is $260\pm 5^{\circ}$ C while that for pyridine is -41.8°C melting point of complex-12 is $258\pm 5^{\circ}$ C while that for 2-aminopyridine is 59-60°C and melting point of complex-13 is $250\pm 5^{\circ}$ C while that for 4-picoline is 2.4°C also indicate the formation of the complexes. Data for the melting points of the complexes has been tabulated in table 4.3.2.

4.3.1.3 Conductivity Measurement

The molar conductance were measured in *N*,*N*²-dimethyl formamide. The conductance values of the Pt(II) and Pd(II) complexes were in the range $(10.65 - 11.65) \Omega^{-1} \text{ cm}^2 \text{ mole}^{-1}$ indicated that these complexes were non-electrolyte in nature^{11,14}. The conductance values are given in tables 4.3.1.

4.3.1.4 Magnetic Moment Measurement

The magnetic moment values of the synthesized complexes indicated that these complexes are diamagnetic (table 4.3.2). This diamagnetism is supported by the small negative values obtained for their magnetic susceptibility. The observed magnetic moment indicate that these complexes are square planar^{60, 67, 73, 121} with dsp² hybridization. The following schematic diagram represents the hybridization in the complexes.



properties, elemental analysis, magnetic and spectroscopic data were used to propose probable structures, and the complexes are reported here for the first time.

4.3.1 Physical Properties

4.3.1.1 Solubility

Solubility of a compound depends on the mode of interaction between solute and solvent molecules (e.g., dipole-dipole interaction, lattice energy, lattice enthalpy, solvation energy, temperature and pressure). A compound will be soluble only when the lattice enthalpy is lower than the solvation energy. The solubility of the complexes was examined in the usual manner. The complexes were all slightly soluble in water and methanol but are soluble in DMF and DMSO.(table 4.3.1)

Complex No.	Complexes	Water		Methanol		DMF		DMSO	
	Complexes	Cold	Hot	Cold	Hot	Cold	Hot	Cold	Hot
9	[Pd(II)(Ph)(Q) ₂]	+/-	+/-	+/-	+/-	+	+	+	+
10	[Pd(II)(Ph)(IQ) ₂]	+/-	+/-	+/-	+/-	+	+	+	+
11	[Pd(II)(Ph)(Py) ₂]	+/-	+/-	+/-	+/-	+	÷	+	+
12	[Pd(II)(Ph)(2-apy)]	+/-	+/-	+/-	+/-	+	+	+	+
13	[Pt(II)(Ph)(4-pico) ₂]	+/-	+/-	+/-	+/-	+	+	+	+

 Table 4.3.1: Solubility of the synthesized complexes

Here, +/- = Slightly soluble and + = Soluble

4.3.1.2 Color & Melting point

All the synthesized complexes (complex 9-13) are colored amorphous powder. Single crystal of the complexes could not be isolated from any solution. Complexes 9,10 and 12 *i.e.*, Pd(II) with (phthalic acid + quinoline), (phthalic acid + pyridine) and (phthalic acid + 2-aminopyridine) are yellow-green in colored, Complexes 10, Pd(II) with (phthalic acid + *iso*-quinoline) is khaki in colored and Pt(II) with (phthalic acid + 4-picoline) is yellow in colored (shown in table 4.3.2). Melting point of complex-9, Pd(II)(Ph)(Q)₂ is $268\pm 5^{\circ}$ C while the melting point of the ligands, phthalic acid is $210-211^{\circ}$ C and quinoline is -15° C which

Results and Discussion 54

Complexes No.	Complexes	Color	Melting point or decomposition temperature (± 5°C)	Molar conductance (ohm ⁻¹ cm ² mol ⁻¹)	magnetic moment Dia	
0	$[Pd(II)(Ph)(Q)_2]$	Yellow Green	268	11.65		
10	[Pd(II)(Ph)(IQ) ₂]	Khaki	255	11.60	Dia	
10	[Pd(II)(Ph)(Py) ₂]	Yellow Green	260	10.80	Dia	
12	[Pd(II)(Ph)(2-apy)]	Yellow Green	258	11.30	Dia	
12	[Pt(II)(Ph)(4-pico) ₂]	Yellow	250	10.65	Dia	

Table 4.3.2: Physical properties of the complexes

where, Dia = Diamagnetic, Ph= Deprotonated phthalic acid, Q=quinoline, IQ= isoquinoline, Py=pyridine, 4-pico=4-picoline, 2-apy=2-amino pyridine.

4.3.2 Elemental Analysis

Elemental analysis is the prime tool for the formulation of a new chemical species. The formulations of the synthesized complexes were done on the basis of elemental analysis. Elemental analyses of the synthesized mixed ligand complexes were performed for palladium, platinum, carbon, hydrogen and nitrogen. The microanalysis of carbon, hydrogen and nitrogen were carried out by an organic elemental analyzer. Palladium & platinum were determined by weighing as the oxide produced by direct ignition. The elemental analyses data of the complexes are given in table 4.3.3. It is seen that the analytical data are in good agreement with the proposed empirical formula of the present complexes.

Com. No.	Vields	Metal		Carbon %		Hydro	ogen	Nitrogen		
	1 Iorac					%		70		
	%	Calculated	Found	Calculated	Found	Calculated	Found	Calculated	Found	
0	65	20.20	20.25	59.27	59.22	3.06	3.11	5.32	5.30	
9	65	20.20	20.20	59.27	59.25	3.06	3.10	5.32	5.30	
10	01	20.20	20.50	50.42	50.35	3.29	3.35	6.54	6.50	
11	72	24.82	24.03	12.91	42.75	2.76	2.70	7.68	7.70	
12	67	29.18	29.10	42.01	44.12	2.22	3 40	5 14	5.11	
13	72	35.77	35.70	44.03	44.13	5.55	5.40	5.11		

Table 4.3.3: Elemental analyses of the complexes

4.3.3 Infrared Spectra Studies

The position of the strong C=O absorption band in the carboxylic acid group of the free carboxylic acid of phtalic acid,1686.8 and 1404.2 cm⁻¹. Upon chelating to center metal ions, this v(C=O) band shifted or disappears and two new bands relating to the asymmetric [v(OCO)asym] and symmetric [v(OCO)sym] stretches appear in the regions 1633.6–1606.6 and 1399.3–1363.6 cm⁻¹, respectively¹¹⁷⁻¹¹⁸. The magnitude of the separation between these two bands [$\Delta(OCO)$ cm⁻¹] has been used, tentatively, as a help in the determination of the nature of the carboxylate coordination¹¹⁸.

 $\Delta(OCO) = [v(OCO)asym - v(OCO)sym] cm^{-1}$

Characterization of the coordination mode of carboxylate based on the IR spectrum of the metal complex has been discussed previously by Deacon and Philips¹¹⁹. Coordination modes were classified as (1) Ionic acetates (e.g. those of alkali metals) having $\Delta(OCO)$ values of ca. 165 cm⁻¹ (for ionic trifluoroacetates, the Δ (OCO) value was ca. 235 cm⁻¹); (2) Δ (OCO) values <105 cm⁻¹ indicating symmetric chelating carboxylate coordination; complexes in which the carboxylates bridge metal-metal bonds may also exhibit values in this region; (3) Δ (OCO) values substantially less than the ionic values (<150 cm⁻¹) indicating the presence of chelating or bridging carboxylates; monodentate carboxylates containing hydrogen bonds may also fall into this category; (4) Δ (OCO) values of transition metal complexes similar to that of ionic acetates (ca. 165 cm⁻¹) were found to be untrustworthy as many examples of each type of coordination mode were found in this category; and (5) Δ (OCO) values of >200 cm⁻¹ indicate monodentate coordination. This large difference in energy is thought to arise from the bonding of one oxygen atom to the metal with the other oxygen-free, increasing the energy of the asymmetric stretching mode. There have been many contradictions to the Δ (OCO) assignments¹¹⁹⁻¹²⁰, primarily concerned with locating the exact position of the Δ (OCO)sym absorption band, and, as such, great care is required when using these guidelines. Tentative assignments for the coordination modes of carboxylate ligands (phthalate) with Pt(II) and Pd(II), based on Δ (OCO) values, are listed in table 4.3.4.
Results and Discussion 56

The v(OCO)asym mode of Pt(II) and Pd(II) complexes of phthalate is found as a very strongto-strong band at 1633.6–1606.6 cm-1, and the corresponding v(OCO)sym one is exhibited at 1399.3–1363.6 cm-1. As the two v(OCO) stretching symmetrical and asymmetrical lie lower than the free ion values and the frequency difference between these two modes is 220.0– 260.3 cm⁻¹, it becomes evident that the carboxylate group acts as a monodentate ligand¹¹⁸⁻¹²⁰. Further, the presence of M–O (O = Oxygen in deprotonated phthalic acid) bonding is evident from the appearance of ν M–O modes at 510.0–537.1 cm⁻¹.

The characteristic ring vibration of the heterocyclic amines in the range 1400-1600 cm⁻¹ generally show significant changes on complexation but in our present complexes these bands could not be distinguished because of overlapping with $v_{C=0}$ and v_{C-0} stretching bands. The in-plane and out plane ring deformation modes of the heterocyclic amines observed at ~ 520 and ~ 720 cm⁻¹ respectively undergo a positive shift in mixed ligand complexes conforming thereby a co-ordination through nitrogen. The presence of M-N bonding in the complexes are evident form the appearance of v_{M-N} modes at 421.4 – 470.0 cm⁻¹. The infrared spectrum of amino pyridine shows v_{NH_2} modes at ~ 3443.96 and ~ 3193.21 cm⁻¹. Both of these bands are shifted to lower frequencies in the complex-12 at ~ 3320.2 cm⁻¹ & ~ 3056.0 cm⁻¹ which indicate the coordination with amino nitrogen^{8-14,122}. Major I.R. spectral data for the complexes are given in table 4.3.4.

Com. No.	υ(OH)	υ(N-H)	υ(OCO) asym	υ(OCO) sym	Δ(ΟCΟ)	υ(M-O)	υ(M-N)
9	12	-	1653.5	1399.3	254.2	510.1	440.0
10	87	-	1606.6	1363.6	243.0	523.6	431.1
11	-	-	1659.6	1399.3	260.3	512.1	421.4
12	5- 17 4	3320.2 3056.0	1633.6	1385.8	247.8	537.1	463.8
13	18	-	1610.0	1390.0	220.0	510.0	470.0

Table 4.3.4: Infrared spectral data of the complexes (cm⁻¹)

4.3.4 Electronic Spectra Studies

The spectra of the Pd(II) complex in DMSO showed three spin allowed d-d transitions and two charge transfer bands. The bands were obtained at 22203-23050, 28155-28500, 31000-31300, 34500-35005 and 40000-40200 cm⁻¹ corresponding to the transitions ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}A_{2g}$, ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}B_{1g}$, ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}E_{g}$, ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}A_{2u}$ & ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}E_{u}$ respectively, which indicates square planar stereochemistry^{59-60, 68-69, 71, 73}. Electronic spectral data for the Pd(II) complexes are given in table 4.3.5.

Complex		Spectral band (cm ⁻¹) with assignment								
No	$^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow ^{1}A_{2g}$	$^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow ^{1}B_{1g}$	$^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}E_{g},$	$^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow ^{1}A_{2u}$	$^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow ^{1}E_{u}$					
9	22,203	28,155	31,115	35,005	40,155					
10	23000	28500	31000	34500	40000					
11	23050	28300	31000	34800	40000					
12	22800	28300	31300	35000	40200					

Table 4.3.5: Electronic spectral data (cm⁻¹) of square-planar palladium (II) complexes

The Pt(II) complex gave three bands at 36,000, 39,650 and 41,000 cm⁻¹ corresponding to the transitions ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}B_{1u}$, ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}E_{u}$ and ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}A_{2u}$ respectively. All of these bands are characteristic of a square-planar Pt(II) complex^{59, 67, 69, 73}. Electronic spectral data for the Pt(II) complexes are given in table 4.3.6.

Table 4.3.6: Electronic spectral data (cm⁻¹) of square-planar platinum (II) complexes

Com. No*	Spect	ral band (cm ⁻¹) with assign	nment
	$^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {^{1}B_{1u}}$	${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}E_{u}$	$^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow ^{1}A_{2u}$
13	36,000	39,650	41,000

From the above discussion, it is evident that the synthesized Pd(II) & Pt(II) complexes are square-planar in structure and the probable structures of the complexes have been shown in figures 4.3.1-4.3.5.



Figure 4.3.1(a): Probable structure of the complex-9, [Pd(II)(Ph)(Q)₂]



Figure 4.3.1(b): Probable ball and stick model of the complex-9, [Pd(II)(Ph)(Q)₂]



Figure 4.3.2(a): Probable structure of the complex-10, [Pd(II)(Ph)(IQ)₂]



Figure 4.3.2(b): Probable ball and stick model of the complex-10, [Pd(II)(Ph)(IQ)₂]



Figure 4.3.3(a): Probable structure of the complex-11, [Pd(II)(Ph)(Py)₂]



Figure 4.3.3(b): Probable ball and stick model of the complex-11, [Pd(II)(Ph)(Py)₂]



Results and Discussion 61



Figure 4.3.4(a): Probable structure of the complex-12, [Pd(II)(Ph)(2-apy)]









Figure 4.3.5(a): Probable structure of the complex-13, [Pt(II)(Ph)(4-pico)₂]



Figure 4.3.5(b): Probable ball and stick model of the complex-13, [Pt(II)(Ph)(4-pico)₂]

		Results and Discussion	4
Cha	racteriza A	tion of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pd Acid and Heterocyclic Amines [Comple	I (II) Ion with Oxalic ex 14-17]
	4.4.1	Physical Properties	
	4.4.1.1	Solubility	
	4.4.1.2	Color & Melting point	
tent	4.4.1.3	Conductivity Measurement	
Con	4.4.1.4	Magnetic Moment	
	4.4.2	Elemental Analysis	
	4.4.3	Infrared Spectra Studies	
	4.4.4	Electronic Spectra Studies	

Mixed ligand complexes of Pd(II) ion with oxalic acid (OXH₂) as primary and heterocyclic amines, *viz.* quinoline (Q), *iso*-Quinoline (IQ), Pyridine (Py) 2-aminopyridine (2-apy) as secondary ligands have been synthesized and characterized by several physico-chemical and spectroscopic analysis. Complexes of Pd(II) ion with oxalic acid (OXH₂) and heterocyclic amines were synthesized by a very simple experimental method; in ethanolic solution at room temperature as discussed in chapter III. It is revealed that the syntheses of all the complexes of Pd(II) followed the following general chemical reactions.

 $PdCl_2 + OXH_2 \rightarrow [Pd^{2+} + OX^{-} + 2H^{+} + 2Cl^{-}]$ (Resulting Solution)

 $[Pd^{2+} + OX^{-} + 2H^{+} + 2Cl^{-}] + 2L \rightarrow [Pd(OX)L_2] + 2HCl$ [For complexes 14-16]

 $[Pd^{2+} + OX^{-} + 2H^{+} + 2Cl^{-}] + L^{1} \rightarrow [Pd(OX)L^{1}] + 2HCl$ [For complexes 17]

where, $OXH_2 = oxalic acid$, L = monodented base, viz - quinoline, Q (for complex 14), *iso*-quinoline, IQ (for complex 15), pyridine, Py (For complex 16) and $L^1 =$ bidented base, 2-aminopyridine, 2apy (For complex 17) Physico-chemical properties, elemental analysis, magnetic and spectroscopic data were used to propose probable structures, and the complexes are reported here for the first time.

4.4.1 Physical Properties

4.4.1.1 Solubility

Solubility of a compound depends on the mode of interaction between solute and solvent molecules (e.g., dipole-dipole interaction, lattice energy, lattice enthalpy, solvation energy,

Results and Discussion 64

temperature and pressure). A compound will be soluble only when the lattice enthalpy is lower than the solvation energy. The solubility of the complexes was examined in the usual manner. The complexes were all slightly soluble in water and methanol but are soluble in DMF and DMSO (table 4.4.1).

Complex No.	Complexes	Water		Methanol		DMF		DMSO	
	complexes	Cold	Hot	Cold	Hot	Cold	Hot	Cold	Hot
14	[Pd(II)(OX)(Q) ₂]	+/-	+/-	+/-	+/-	+	+	+	+
15	[Pd(II)(OX)(IQ) ₂]	+/-	+/-	+/-	+/-	+	+	+	+
16	[Pd(II)(OX)(Py) ₂]	+/-	+/-	+/-	+/-	+	+	+	+
17	[Pd(II)(OX)(2-apy)]	+/-	+/-	+/-	+/-	+	+	+	+

Table 4.4.1: Solubility of the synthesized complexes

Here, +/- = Slightly soluble and + = Soluble

4.4.1.2 Color & Melting point

All the synthesized complexes (complex 14-17) are colored amorphous powder. Single crystal of the complexes could not be isolated from any solution. Complexes 14, Pd(II) with (oxalic acid + quinoline) is yellow in colored, Complexes 15, Pd(II) with (oxalic acid + *iso*-quinoline) is apricot in colored and Complexes 16 and 17 *i.e.*, Pd(II) with (oxalic acid + pyridine) and (oxalic acid + 2-aminopyridine) are yellow-orange in colored (shown in table 4.4.2). Melting point of complex-14, Pd(II)(OX)(Q)₂is 270± 5°C while the melting point of the ligands, oxalic acid is 102-103°C and quinoline is -15°C which indicates the strong indication of coordination of the ligands and formation of the complex. Similarly for the melting point of complex-15 is $255\pm 5°C$ while that for *iso*-quinoline is 26-28°C melting point of complex-16 is $265\pm 5°C$ while that for pyridine is -41.8°C and melting point of complex-16 is $250\pm 5°C$ while that for pyridine is 59-60°C also indicate the formation of the complexes. Data for the melting points of the complexes has been tabulated in table 4.4.2.

4.4.1.3 Conductivity Measurement

The molar conductance were measured in *N*,*N*'-dimethyl formamide. The conductance values of the Pd(II) complexes were in the range (10.65 – 12.40) Ω^{-1} cm² mole⁻¹ indicated that these

complexes were non-electrolyte in nature^{11,14}. The conductance values are given in table 4.4.2.

4.4.1.4 Magnetic Moment Measurement

The magnetic moment values of the synthesized complexes indicated that these complexes are diamagnetic (table 4.4.2). This diamagnetism is supported by the small negative values obtained for their magnetic susceptibility. The observed magnetic moment indicate that these complexes are square planar^{60, 67, 73, 121} with dsp² hybridization. The following schematic diagram represents the hybridization in the complexes(14-17).



Table 4.4.2: Physical properties of the complexes

Complexes No.	S Complexes Color		Melting point or decomposition temperature (± 5°C)	Molar conductance (ohm ⁻¹ cm ² mol ⁻¹)	magnetic moment
14	$[Pd(II)(OX)(Q)_2]$	Yellow	270	10.75	Dia
15	[Pd(II)(OX)(IQ) ₂]	Apricot	255	12.40	Dia
16	[Pd(II)(OX)(Py) ₂]	Yellow Green	265	11.35	Dia
17	[Pd(II)(OX)(2-apy)]	Yellow Green	250	10.65	Dia

where, Dia = Diamagnetic, OX = Deprotonated oxalic acid, Q = quinoline, IQ = iso-quinoline, Py=pyridine, 2-apy=2-amino pyridine.

4.4.2 Elemental Analysis

Elemental analysis is the prime tool for the formulation of a new chemical species. The formulations of the synthesized complexes were done on the basis of elemental analysis. Elemental analyses of the synthesized mixed ligand complexes were performed for Palladium, carbon, hydrogen and nitrogen. The microanalysis of carbon, hydrogen and

Results and Discussion 66

Chapter Four

nitrogen were carried out by an organic elemental analyzer. Palladium was determined by weighing as the oxide produced by direct ignition. The elemental analyses data of the complexes are given in table 4.4.3. It is seen that the analytical data are in good agreement with the proposed empirical formula of the present complexes.

Com. Yie	Yields	Metal %		Carbon %		Hydrogen %		Nitrogen %	
No.	%	Calculated	Found	Calculated	Found	Calculated	Found	Calculated	Found
14	61	23.51	23.45	53.05	52.89	3.12	3.21	6.19	6.18
15	65	23.51	23.41	53.05	52.92	3.12	3.18	6.19	6.13
16	70	30.18	30.02	40.87	40.95	2.86	2.93	7.95	7.85
17	65	36.88	36.75	29.13	29.00	2.10	2.21	9.71	9.65

Table 4.4.3: Elemental analyses of the complexes

4.4.3 Infrared Spectra Studies

The position of the strong C=O absorption band in the carboxylic acid group of the free carboxylic acid of oxalic acid, 1692.6 and 1441.8 cm⁻¹. Upon chelating to center metal ions, this v(C=O) band shifted or disappears and two new bands relating to the asymmetric [v(OCO)asym] and symmetric [v(OCO)sym] stretches appear in the regions 1610.5–1575.7 and 1389.6-1379.1 cm⁻¹ respectively¹¹⁷⁻¹¹⁸. The magnitude of the separation between these two bands [$\Delta(OCO)$ cm⁻¹] has been used, tentatively, as a help in the determination of the nature of the carboxylate coordination¹¹⁸.

 $\Delta(OCO) = [v(OCO)asym - v(OCO)sym] cm^{-1}$

Characterization of the coordination mode of carboxylate based on the IR spectrum of the metal complex has been discussed previously by Deacon and Philips¹¹⁹. Coordination modes were classified as (1) Ionic acetates (*e.g.* those of alkali metals) having Δ (OCO) values of *ca.* 165 cm⁻¹ (for ionic trifluoroacetates, the Δ (OCO) value was *ca.* 235 cm⁻¹); (2) Δ (OCO) values <105 cm⁻¹ indicating symmetric chelating carboxylate coordination; complexes in which the carboxylates bridge metal–metal bonds may also exhibit values in this region; (3) Δ (OCO) values substantially less than the ionic values (<150 cm⁻¹) indicating the presence of

Results and Discussion [] 67

chelating or bridging carboxylates; monodentate carboxylates containing hydrogen bonds may also fall into this category; (4) Δ (OCO) values of transition metal complexes similar to that of ionic acetates (*ca.* 165 cm⁻¹) were found to be untrustworthy as many examples of each type of coordination mode were found in this category; and (5) Δ (OCO) values of >200 cm⁻¹ indicate monodentate coordination. This large difference in energy is thought to arise from the bonding of one oxygen atom to the metal with the other oxygen-free, increasing the energy of the asymmetric stretching mode. There have been many contradictions to the Δ (OCO) assignments¹¹⁹⁻¹²⁰, primarily concerned with locating the exact position of the Δ (OCO)sym absorption band, and, as such, great care is required when using these guidelines. Tentative assignments for the coordination modes of carboxylate ligands (oxalate) with Pd(II) based on Δ (OCO) values, are listed in table 4.4.4.

The v(OCO)asym mode of Pd(II) complexes of oxalate is found as a very strong-to-strong band at 1610.5–1575.7 cm⁻¹, and the corresponding v(OCO)sym one is exhibited at 1389.6-1379.1 cm⁻¹. As the two v(OCO) stretching symmetrical and asymmetrical lie lower than the free ion values and the frequency difference between these two modes is 197.7–231.4 cm⁻¹ it becomes evident that the carboxylate group acts as a monodentate ligand¹¹⁷⁻¹¹⁹. Further, the presence of M–O (O = Oxygen in deprotonated oxalic acid) bonding is evident from the appearance of ν M–O modes at 500.5–520.0 cm⁻¹.

The characteristic ring vibration of the heterocyclic amines in the range 1400-1600 cm⁻¹ generally show significant changes on complexation but in our present complexes these bands could not be distinguished because of overlapping with $v_{C=0}$ and v_{C-0} stretching bands. The in-plane and out plane ring deformation modes of the heterocyclic amines observed at ~ 520 and ~ 720 cm⁻¹ respectively undergo a positive shift in mixed ligand complexes conforming thereby a co-ordination through nitrogen. The presence of M-N bonding in the complexes are evident form the appearance of v_{M-N} modes at 455.0 – 469.6 cm⁻¹. The infrared spectrum of amino pyridine shows v_{NH_2} modes at ~ 3443.96 and ~ 3193.21 cm⁻¹. Both of these bands are shifted to lower frequencies in the complex-17 at ~3345.3 cm⁻¹ & ~3061.8 cm⁻¹ which indicate the coordination with amino nitrogen^{8-14, 122}. Major I.R. spectral data for the complexes are given in table 4.4.4

Results and Discussion 68

Com. No.	υ(OH)	υ(N-H)	υ(OCO) asym	υ(OCO) sym	Δ(OCO)	υ(M-O)	υ(M-N)
14	3.5	-	1610.5	1379.1	231.4	510.0	460.0
15	32	-	1610.0	1379.1	230.9	500.5	455.0
16	-		1575.7	1378.0	197.7	520.0	469.6
17	-	3345.3 3061.8	1599.8	1389.6	210.2	513.0	463.8

Table 4.4.4: Infrared spectral data of the complexes (cm
--

4.4.4 Electronic Spectra Studies

The spectra of the Pd(II) complex in DMSO showed three spin allowed d-d transitions and two charge transfer bands. The bands were obtained at 22220-23055, 28155-28500, 31000-31350, 34500-35000 and 40050-40205 cm⁻¹ corresponding to the transitions ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}A_{2g}$ ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}B_{1g}$, ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}E_{g}$, ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}A_{2u}$ & ${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}E_{u}$ respectively, which indicates square planar stereochemistry^{59-60, 68-69, 71, 73}. Electronic spectral data for the complexes are given in table 4.4.5

Table 4.4.5: Electronic spectral	data (cm ⁻¹)	of square-planar	palladium (I	D complexes
				PROVANCE CALLER AND A	

Complexes	Spectral band (cm ⁻¹) with assignment								
No	${}^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}A_{2g}$	$^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}B_{1g}$	$^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow {}^{1}E_{g},$	$^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow ^{1}A_{2u}$	$^{1}A_{1g} \rightarrow ^{1}E_{u}$				
14	22220	28500	31115	35000	40165				
15	23040	28,155	31050	34505	40050				
16	23055	28350	31000	34850	40100				
17	22750	28400	31350	35000	40205				

From the above discussion, it is evident that the Synthesized Pd(II) complexes are square planer in structure and the probable structures of the complexes have been shown in figures 4.4.1-4.4.4.



Figure 4.4.1(a): Probable structure of the complex-14, [Pd(II)(OX)(Q)₂]







Figure 4.4.2(a): Probable structure of the complex-15, [Pd(II)(OX)(IQ)₂]



Figure 4.4.2(b): Probable ball and stick model of the complex-15, [Pd(II)(OX)(IQ)₂]



Figure 4.4.3(a): Probable structure of the complex-16, [Pd(II)(OX)(Py)₂]



Figure 4.4.3(b): Probable ball and stick model of the complex-16, [Pd(II)(OX)(Py)2]





Figure 4.4.4(a): Probable structure of the complex-17, [Pd(II)(OX)(2-apy)]



Figure 4.4.4(b): Probable ball and stick model of the complex-17, [Pd(II)(OX)(2-apy)]

Results and Discussion 5

Antibacterial Activity of The Mixed Ligand Pt(II), Pt(IV) & Pd(II) Complexes(1-17)

4.5.1 Antibacterial Screening

The present chapter describes the antibacterial activity of mixed ligand complexes of Pt(II), Pt(IV), & Pd(II) ions with some dibasic acids (malonic acid, oxalic acid & phthalic acid) as primary and heterocyclic amines, viz. quinoline (Q), *iso*-quinoline (IQ), pyridine (Py), 2-aminopyridine (2-apy), 4-pico(4-picoline) as secondary ligands. Disc diffusion method was employed for the antibacterial studies and the detail method was discussed in chapter III.

4.5.1 Antibacterial Screening

Biological studies were observed in the antibacterial activities of the targeted compounds against Gram-positive (Listeria monocytogenes, Staphylococcus aureus, Enterococcus faecalis) and Gram-negative (Pseudomonas aeruginosa, Salmonella bovismorbificans, Salmonella typhi, Escherichia coli). Result from the agar disc diffusion tests for antibacterial activities of target compounds are presented in tables 4.5.1-4.5.4, and illustrated in figures 4.5.5-4.5.10 respectively. The diameters of zone of inhibition (in mm) of the standard drug kanamycin against bacteria Pseudomonas (Gram-negative), bovismorbificans Salmonella (Gram-negative), aeruginosa Salmonella typhi (Gram-negative), Escherichia coli (Gram-negative), Listeria (Gram-positive), Staphylococcus aureus (Gram-positive), monocytogenes Enterococcus faecalis (Gram-positive) were found to be 22, 22, 20, 20, 25, 23, and 21 mm respectively & the graphical comparision of zone of inhibition of the complexes with standard against the microorganisms are shown in figures 4.5.1-4.5.4. Under identical conditions table 4.5.1 shows that complex 1 has 20, 15, 20, 30, 31,08 and 25 mm, complex 2 has 25, 18, 19, 32, 25, 0 and 28 mm, complex 3 has 38, 25, 21, 45, 29, 28 and 45 mm, complex 4 has 45, 28, 25, 48, 40, 21 and 40 mm, table 4.5.2 shows that complex 5 has 20, 24, 32, 24, 32, 23 and 25 mm, complex 6 has 20, 31, 30, 30, 11, 34 and 22 mm, complex 7 has 25, 25, 0, 32, 14, 22 and 24 mm, complex 8 has 40, 32, 22, 38, 42, 32 and 18 mm, table 4.5.3 shows that complex 9 has 18, 23, 28, 12, 24, 30 and 31 mm, complex 10 has 19, 23, 26, 28, 22, 17 and 21 mm, complex 11 has 12, 0, 21, 23, 26, 18 and 10 mm, complex 12 has 38, 25, 21, 30, 21, 34 and 21 mm, complex 13 has 32, 33, 33, 40, 41, 42 and 27 mm, table 4.5.4 shows that complex 14 has 11, 18, 16, 23, 31, 23 and 15 mm, complex 15 has 23, 16, 17, 19, 26, 22 and 21 mm, complex 16 has 21, 22, 25, 16, 19, 32 and 25 mm, complex 17 has 34, 42, 26, 28, 38, 35 and 41 mm, against Pseudomonas aeruginosa, Salmonella bovismorbificans, Salmonella typhi, Escherichia coli, Listeria monocytogenes, Staphylococcus aureus, Enterococcus faecalis respectively. The complexes containing 2-aminopyridine and 4-picoline as secondary ligands are much more microbial active than the other complexes. Moreover, the complexes $[Pt(MA)_2(4-pico)_2]$ showed the highest antibacterial activity against all bacteria tested. The complexes 1, 6 and 11 showed the lowest inhibition zones against Staphylococcus aureus, Salmonella typhi & Enterococcus faecalis corresponding to zone sizes of 8 and 10 mm respectively. The complexes 2, 7 and 11 no zone inhibition against Staphylococcus aureus, Salmonella typhi and Salmonella bovismorbificans was found. Among the tested complexes, all were shown more or less antibacterial activities against the treated bacteria. The highest and the lowest antibacterial activities were found in complex 4 and complex 11 respectively against all the treated bacteria.

It may be concluded that from the data most of the complexes were found to be efficient antibacterial agent.

teria	Name of the bacteria	Diameter of inhibition zone of bacteria in different complexes (mm)							
Bac	Name of the bacteria	1	2	3	4	Kanamycin 30µg/disc			
Α	Pseudomonas aeruginosa (-ve)	20	25	38	45	22			
В	Salmonella bovismorbificans(-ve)	15	18	25	28	22			
С	Salmonella typhi (-ve)	20	19	21	25	20			
D	Escherichia coli (-ve)	30	32	45	48	20			
E	Listeria monocytogenes(+ve)	31	25	29	40	25			
F	Staphylococcus aureus (+ve)	08	0	28	21	23			
G	Enterococcus faecalis(+ve)	25	28	45	40	21			

Table 4.5.1: Antibacterial activity of the complexes (1-4)



Figure 4.5.1: Graphical comparision of zone of inhibition of the complexes 1-4 with standard (Kanamycin)

Bacteria code	Name of the bacteria	Diameter of inhibition zone of bacteria in different complexes (mm)						
		5	6	7	8	Kanamycir 30µg/disc		
Α	Pseudomonas aeruginosa (-ve)	20	20	25	40	22		
В	Salmonella bovismorbificans(-ve)	24	31	25	32	22		
C	Salmonella typhi (-ve)	32	30	0	22	20		
D	Escherichia coli (-ve)	24	30	32	38	20		
E	Listeria monocytogenes(+ve)	32	11	14	42	25		
F	Staphylococcus aureus (+ve)	23	34	22	32	23		
G	Enterococcus faecalis(+ve)	21	22	24	18	21		

Table 4.5.2: Antibacterial activity of the complexes (5-8)





Bacteria code	Name of the bacteria	Diameter of inhibition zone of bacteria in different complexes (mm)						
		9	10	11	12	13	Kanamycin 30µg/disc	
Α	Pseudomonas aeruginosa (-ve)	18	19	12	38	32	22	
В	Salmonella bovismorbificans(-ve)	23	23	0	25	33	22	
С	Salmonella typhi (-ve)	28	26	21	21	33	20	
D	Escherichia coli (-ve)	12	28	23	30	40	20	
E	Listeria monocytogenes(+ve)	24	22	26	21	41	25	
F	Staphylococcus aureus (+ve)	30	17	18	34	12	23	
G	Enterococcus faecalis(+ve)	31	21	10	12	27	21	

Table 4.5.3: Antibacterial activity of the complexes (9-13)



Figure 4.5.3: Graphical comparision of zone of inhibition of the complexes 9-13 with standard (Kanamycin)

Bacteria code	Name of the bacteria	Diameter of inhibition zone of bacteria in different complexes (mm)						
		14	15	16	17	Kanamycin 30µg/disc		
Α	Pseudomonas aeruginosa (-ve)	11	23	21	34	22		
В	Salmonella bovismorbificans(-ve)	18	16	22	42	22		
С	Salmonella typhi (-ve)	16	17	25	26	20		
D	Escherichia coli (-ve)	23	19	16	28	20		
E	Listeria monocytogenes(+ve)	31	26	19	38	25		
F	Staphylococcus aureus (+ve)	23	22	32	25	23		
G	Enterococcus faecalis(+ve)	15	21	25	41	21		

Table 4.5.4: Antibacterial activity of the complexes (14-17)



Figure 4.5.4: Graphical comparision of zone of inhibition of the complexes 14-17 with standard (Kanamycin)



Figure-4.5.5: Photographic representation of zone of inhibition of complexes 1 and 2 respectively against the bacteria *Listeria monocytogenes*.

Figure- 4.5.6: Photographic representation of zone of inhibition of complexes 5 and 6 respectively against the bacteria *Escherichia coli*.



Figure- 4.5.7: Photographic representation of zone of inhibition of complexes 7 and 8 respectively against the bacteria *Salmonella bovismorbificans*.

Figure- 4.5.8: Photographic representation of zone of inhibition of complexes 9 and 10 respectively against the bacteria *Enterococcus faecalis*.



Figure- 4.5.9: Photographic representation of zone of inhibition of complexes 11, 12 and 13 respectively against the bacteria *Salmonella typhi*. Figure- 4.5.10: Photographic representation of zone of inhibition of complexes 14 and 15 respectively against the bacteria *Staphylococcus aureus*.



Conclusion

5. Conclusion

Mixed ligand complexes of platinum (II), platinum (IV), Palladium (II) ions with some dibasic acid (*viz.*, malonic acid, oxalic acid and phthalic acid) as primary and heterocyclic bases, *viz.*, quinoline(Q), *iso*-quinoline (IQ), pyridine (Py), 2-aminopyridine (2apy) and 4-picoline (4-pico) as secondary ligands were synthesized. By comparing the data of elemental analysis, magnetic moment, spectroscopic analysis the proposed empirical formula of the synthesized complexes can be following:

 $[Pt(MA)_2(Q)_2](1), [Pt(MA)_2(IQ)_2](2), [Pt(MA)_2(Py)_2](3), [Pt(MA)_2(4-pico)_2](4), \\ [Pt(OX)_2(Q)_2](5), [Pt(OX)_2(IQ)_2](6), [Pt(OX)_2(Py)_2](7), [Pt(OX)_2(4-pico)_2](8), \\ [Pd(Ph)(Q)_2](9), [Pd(Ph)(IQ)_2](10), [Pd(Ph)(Py)_2](11), [Pd(Ph)(2-apy)](12), \\ [Pt(Ph)(4-pico)_2](13), [Pd(OX)(Q)_2](14), [Pd(OX)(IQ)_2](15), [Pd(OX)(Py)_2](16) and \\ [Pd(OX)(2-apy)](17) where, MA = Deprotonated malonic acid, OX = Deprotonated \\ oxalic acid, Ph = Deprotonated phthalic acid, Q = quinoline, IQ =$ *iso* $-quinoline, \\ Py = pyridine, 4-pico = 4-picoline, 2-apy = 2-aminopyridine.$

All the complexes were isolated in the ethanolic solution as amorphous solid. All the synthesized complexes are colored and readily soluble in DMF and DMSO. The conductance values attributed that the complexes were non-electrolyte in nature. The analytical data are in good agreement with the proposed empirical formula of the present complexes. The infrared spectra of the complexes confirmed the coordination of metal ion with ligands. The small negative values of magnetic moment of the complexes indicated that all the synthesized complexes are diamagnetic. From the Magnetic moment and electronic spectra of the complexes are assignable that the Pt(IV) (1-8) complexes are octahedral structure and Pt(II) (13) & Pd(II) (9-12,14-17) complexes are square planar structure.

Their anti-bacterial activity had been evaluated. Disc diffusion methods were employed for antibacterial assays against seven pathogenic bacteria (thee gram positive and four gram negative), the complexe-4 shows the highest anti bacterial activity against all bacterial tested.



References

- Marcus, Y. and Eliezer, I., 1969, "Stability of Mixed Complexes in Solution". Coord. Chem. Rev, Vol. 4, pp. 273-322.
- Humphrey, S. M., Chang, J. S., Jhung, S. H., Yoon, J. W. and Wood, P. T., 2006, "Porous Cobalt(II)-Organic Frameworks with Corrugated Walls: Structurally Robust Gas-Sorption Materials". Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. Engl, Vol. 46, pp. 272-275.
- Baruah, A. M., Karmakar, A. and Baruah, J. B., 2008, "Steric Effects in Controlling Co-Ordination Environment in Zinc 2-Nitrobenzoate Complexes". Inorg. Chim. Acta, Vol. 361, pp. 2777-2784.
- Sudik, A., Ockwig, N., Millward, A., Cote, A. and Yaghi, O. M., 2005, "Design, Synthesis, Structure, and Gas (N₂, Ar, CO₂, CH₄ and H₂) Sorption Properties of Porous Metal-Organic Tetrahedral and Heterocuboidal Polyhedra". J. Am. Chem. Soc, Vol. 127, pp. 7110-7118.
- Liu, Y., Kravtsov, V., Beauchamp, D. A., Eubank, J. F. and Eddaoudi, M., 2005, "4-Connected Metal-Organic Assemblies Mediated Via Heterochelation and Bridging of Single Metal Ions: Kagome Lattice and the M₆l₁₂octahedron". J. Am. Chem. Soc, Vol. 127, pp. 7266-7267.
- Robert, V. and Lamercier, G., 2006, "A Combined Experimental and Theoretical Study of Carboxylate Coordination Modes: A Structural Probe".
 J. Am. Chem. Soc, Vol. 128(4), pp. 1183-1187.
- Delgado, F. S., Hernandez-Molina, M., Sanchiz, J., Riuz-Perz, C., Rodriguez-Martin, Y., Lopez, T., Lloret, F. and Julve, M., 2004, "Synthesis, Crystal Structure and Magnetic Properties of Two-Dimensional Malonato-Bridged Cobalt(II) and Nickel(II) Compounds". Cryst. Eng. Commun, Vol. 6, pp.106-111.

- Tokii, T., Nakatara, S., Hoshimoto, N., Koikawa, M., Nakashima, M. and Matsushima, H., 1995, "Magnetic Properties and Crystal Structures of Binuclear Copper(II) Complexes with Heterocyclic Thione Donors of 1, 3-Bis (hydroxy methyl)-2-imidazolidinethione and 1-hydroxymethyl-3-methyl-2-imidazolinetione". Bull. Chem. Soc. Jpn, Vol. 68, pp. 2533-2542.
- Tokii, T., Watanabe, N., Nakashima, M., Muto, Y., Morooka, M., Ohba, S. and Salto, Y., 1990, "Structural, Magnetic and Spectroscopic Characterization of Novel Di-μ-carboxylato-Bridged Binuclear Copper (II) Complexes with 1, 10-phenan Throline". Bull. Chem. Soc. Jpn, Vol. 63, pp. 364-369.
- Matsushima, H., Koikawa, M., Nakashima, M. and Tokii, T., 1995, "Synthesis, Structure, and Magnetic Properties of Dinuclear Copper (II) Complexes with Novel Triple Carbonylato-Bridging Linkages". Chem. Lett. Jap, Vol. 10, pp. 869-870.
- Islam, M. S., Hossain, M. B. and Reza, M. Y., 2004, "Synthesis and Charecterization of Mixed Lidand Complexes of Co(II) and Fe(III) Ions with Malonic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines". Indian. J. Chem, Vol .43A, pp. 1897-1900.
- Hossain, M. B., Islam, M. S., Islam, M. R., Salam, M. A. and Yousuf, M. A., 2012, "Synthesis and Characterization of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Co(II) and Fe(III) Ions with Maleic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines". Journal of Bangladesh Chemical Society, Vol. 25(2), pp. 139-145.
- Hossain, M. B., Yousuf, M. A., Islam, M. R, Salam, M. A., Rahman, M. A. and Akbor, M.A., 2012, "Synthesis and Characterization of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Co(II) and Fe(III) Ions with Malic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines". Bangladesh Pharmaceutical Journal, Vol. 15(2), pp. 177-181.

- Hossain, M. B., Hossain, M. M. and Islam, M. S., 2004, "Synthesis and Characterization of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pt(IV) and Ni(II) Ions with Phthalic Acid and Heterocyclic Amines". J. Bangladesh. Chem .Soc, Vol. 17(2), pp. 177-182.
- Reddy, B. S., Reddy, A. B., Reddy, G. R. and Reddy, P. R., 2013, "Synthesis, Characterization, and *In Vitro* Antimicrobial Activity of a New Class of 7-Substituted Amino-2-phenyl-3H-pyrimido[4,5-*d*]pyrimidin-4-one". J of Heterocyclic Chemistry, Vol. 150(4), pp. 963-968.
- Wojcicka, A., Wagner, E., Drys, A., and Nawrocka, W. P., 2013, "Synthesis and *In vitro* Antitumor Screening of Novel 2,7-Naphthyridine-3-carboxylic Acid Derivatives". J of Heterocyclic Chemistry, Vol. 150(4), pp. 746-753.
- Kumar, J. S., Alam, M. A., Gurrapu, S., Nelson, G., Williams, M., Corsello, M.A., Johnson, J. L., Jonnalagadda, S. C. and Mereddy, V. R., 2013, "Synthesis and Biological Evaluation of Novel Benzoxaboroles as Potential Antimicrobial and Anticancer Agents". J of Heterocyclic Chemistry, Vol. 150(4), pp. 814-820.
- Abdel-Rahman, A. A. H., Ali, O. M. and Abdel-Megeed, A. A. S., 2013, "Synthesis and Antimicrobial Activity of New Tetrazoles Incorporating Isoindole-1, 3-dione Moiety and Their Sugar Derivatives". J of Heterocyclic Chemistry, Vol. 150(3), pp. 484-489.
- Insuasty, B., Becerra, D., Quiroga, J., Abonia, R., Nogueras, M. and Cobo, J., 2013, "Synthesis of Novel Pyrimido[4,5-b]quinolin-4-ones with Potential Antitumor Activity". J of Heterocyclic Chemistry, Vol. 150(3), pp. 503-512.
- Rollison, C. L. and Enig, M. G., 1981, "Krikothmer: Encyclopoedia of Chemical Technology". 3rd end nol-15.
- Navarro, M., Escobar, A., Landaeta, V.R., Visbal, G., Lopez-Linares, F., Luis, M. and Fuentes, A., 2009, "Catalytic Oxidation of Tetralin by Biologically

Active Copper and Palladium Complexes". Appl. Catal. A: Gen, Vol. 363, pp. 27-31.

- Navarro, M., Higuerapadilla, A. R., Arsenak, M. and Taylor, P., 2009, "Synthesis, Characterization, DNA Interaction Studies and Anticancer Activity of Platinum–Clotrimazole Complexes". Trans. Met. Chem, Vol. 34, pp. 869-875.
- Bowen, R. J., Navarro, M., Shearwood, A. M. J., Healy, P. C., Skelton, B. W., Filipovska, A. and Berners-Price, S.J., 2009, "1:2 Adducts of copper(I) halides with 1,2-bis(di-2-pyridylphosphino)ethane: solid state and solution structural studies and antitumouractivity". Dalton Trans, Vol. 48, pp. 10861-10870.
- Navarro, M., Gabbiani, C., Messori, L. and Gambino, D., 2010, "Metal-Based Drugs for Malaria, Trypanosomiasis and Leishmaniasis: Recent Achievements and Perspectives". Drug Discov. Today, Vol. 15(23–24), pp. 1070-1078.
- 25. Navarro, M., Castro, W., Martinez, A. and Delgado, R. A. S., 2011, "The Mechanism of Antimalarial Action of [Au(CQ)(Pph(3))]PF(6): Structural Effects and Increased Drug Lipophilicity Enhance Heme Aggregation Inhibition at Lipid/Water Interfaces". J. Inorg. Bioche, Vol. 105(2), pp. 276-282.
- Rafique, S., Idrees, M., Nasim, A., Akbar, H. and Athar, A., 2010, "Transition Metal Complexes as Potential Therapeutic Agents". Biotechnol. Mol. Biol. Rev, Vol. 5(2), pp. 38-45.
- 27. Ko-pf-Maier, P., 1994, "Complexes of Metals Other Than Platinum as Antitumor Agents". Eur. J. Clin. Pharmacol, Vol. 47(1), pp. 1-16.
- 28. Pereira, R. M. S., Andrades, N. E. D., Paulino, N., Sawaya, A. C. H. F., Eberlin, M. N., Marcucci, M. C., Favero, G. M., Novak, E. M. and Bydlowski, S.P., 2007, "Synthesis and Characterization of a Metal Complex Containing Naringin and Cu, and its Antioxidant, Antimicrobial, Anti-inflammatory and Tumor Cell Cytotoxicity". Molecules, Vol. 12(7), pp. 1352-1366.

- Kulkarni, N. V., Revankar, V. K., Kirasur, B. N. and Hugar, M. H., 2012,
 "Transition Metal Complexes of Thiosemicarbazones with Quinoxaline Hub: An Emphasis on Antidiabetic Property". Med. Chem. Res, Vol. 21(5), pp. 663-671.
- Sekhon, B. S., 2011, "Inorganics/bioinorganics: Biological, Medicinal and Pharmaceutical Uses". J. Pharm. Educ. Res, Vol. 2(1), pp. 1-20.
- Islam, M. S. and Uddin, M. M., 1991, "Mixed Ligand Complexes of Cr(III), Fe(III) and Ru(III) Diphenates with Heterocyclic Bases". Synth. React. Inorg. Met-Org. Chem, Vol. 21(6&7), pp. 1093-1105.
- 32. Islam, M. S. and Masir, M. U., 1992, "Mixed-Ligand Complexes of Copper(II) Palladium(II) and Platinum(IV) with Homophthalic Acid and Heterocyclic Bases". Synth. React. Inorg. Met-Org. Chem, Vol. 22, pp. 131-142.
- Islam M. S., Quamrul, M. L. and Hussain, T., 1990, "Synthesized and Characterization of Mixed Ligand Complexes of V(IV) and Ti(III) Homophthalate with Heterocyclic Amines". Pak. J. Sci. Ind. Res, Vol. 33(5-6), pp. 205-207.
- 34. Sharma, C. L. and Islam, M. S., 1986, "Synthesized and Characterization of Mixed Ligand Complexes of Co(II) and Ni(II) with Diphenic Acid as Primary and Heterocyclic Bases as Secondary Ligands". Synth. React. Inorg. Met.-Org. Chem, Vol. 16(4), pp. 553-563.
- Islam, M. S. and Masir, M. U., 1991, "Mixed-Ligand Complexes of Cr(III), Fe(III) and Ru(III) Diphenates with Heterocyclic Bases". Synth, React. Inorg. Met-Org. Chem, Vol. 21, pp. 1093-1105.
- Angel, R., Juan, S. C., Emilio, E., Rafael, A., Julia, G. L., Amparo, S. and Lucia, S., 2008, "Novel Cu(II)-Based Frameworks Built from BIMAM and Oxalate: Syntheses, Structures, and Magnetic Characterizations (BIMAM)

Bis(imidazol-yl) methylaminomethane)". Crystal Growth & Design, Vol. 8(11), pp. 4075-4082.

- Szabo, Z. and Fischer, A., 2002, "Redetermination of dipotassium diuranyl tris(oxalate) tetrahydrate". Acta Crystallogr, Vol. E 58, pp. i56–i58.
- Ferri, D., Iuliano, M., Manfredi, C., Vasca, E., Curaso, T., Clemente, M. and Fontanella, C., 2000, "Dioxouranium(VI) oxalate complexes". J. Chem. Soc., Dalton. Trans, DOI: 10.1039/B006544G, pp. 3460-3466.
- Chattopadhyay, D., Chattopadhyay, S. K., Lowe, P. R., Schwalke, C. H., Mazumber, S. K., Rana, A. and Ghosh, S., 1993, "Synthesis and Structural Studies of tetraaquacopper(II) diaquabis(Malonato) Cuprate(II)". J. Chem. Soc., Dalton Trans, Vol. 6, pp. 913-916.
- Gil de Muro, F. A., Mautner, M., Insausti, L., Lezama, M. I. and Arriortua, T. R., 1998, "Study of the Two-Dimensional [MM⁴(C₃H₂O₄)₂(H ₂ O)₄] (M = Ba, Sr and M⁴ = Cu, Mn) Systems: Synthesis, Structure, Magnetic Properties, and Thermal Decomposition". Inorg. Chem, Vol. 37(13), pp. 3243-3251.
- Ruiz-Perez, C., Sanchiz, J., Hernandez-Molina, M., Lloret, F. and Julve, M., 2000, "Synthesis, Crystal Structure and Magnetic Properties of the Malonato-Bridged Bimetallic Chain [Mn(II)Cu(II)(Mal)₂(H₂O)(4)] Centerdot 2H₂O". Inorganica Chimica Acta, Vol. 298, pp. 202-208.
- 42. Catalina, R. P., Joaquin S., Maria, H. M., Francesc, L. and Miguel, J., 2000, "Ferromagnetism in Malonato-Bridged Copper(II) Complexes. Synthesis, Crystal Structures and Magnetic Properties of {[Cu(H₂O)₃][Cu(mal)₂(H₂O)]}*n*and{[Cu(H₂O)₄]₂[Cu(mal)₂H₂O)]} [Cu(mal)₂(H₂O)₂] { [Cu(H₂O)₄][Cu(mal)₂ (H₂)₂] }(H₂mal = malonic Acid)". Inorg. Chem, Vol. 39, pp. 1363-1370.
- Santiago, R., Pablo, V., Juan, M., Gutierrez-Zorrilla, L. L., Juan, M., Madariaga, L. S. F. and Amaia, I., 2007, "Coexistence of Five Different Copper(II)-Phenanthroline Species in the Crystal Packing of Inorganic-

References (1) 91

- Elvira, C. R., Yi-Zhen, H. and Randolph, P. T., 2003, "Cu (I) Complexes of
 3, 3 Polymethylene Bridged Derivatives of 2, 2-Bi-1,10-Phenanthroline". Inorg. Chem, Vol. 42, pp. 6648-6654.
- Brian S. H. and Carl J. C., 1999, "The Synthesis and Characterization of 4, 5, and 6 Coordinate Ni (II) Complexes of the Heteroscorpionate Ligand". Inorg. Chem, Vol. 38, pp. 3562-3568.
- 53. Ajibade, P. A. and Idemudia, O. G., 2013, "Synthesis, Characterization, and Antibacterial Studies of Pd(II) and Pt(II) Complexes of Some Diaminopyrimidine Derivatives". Bioinorgchem Apple, Vol. 2013, pp. 1-8.
- Eugenio, C., Pablo, G., Sergio, T., Robert, G. and Johannes, G. V., 2010, "Synthesis and Properties of Dinuclear Ru(II)/Os(II) Complexes Based on a Heteroditopic Phenanthroline-Terpyridine Bridging Ligand". Inorg. Chem, Vol. 49, pp. 6897–6903.
- 55. Yeamin, R., Laila, A. B., Islam, S., Seik, W. N. and Edward, R. T. T., 2011, "(2,2'-Bipyridine-κ² N,N')chlorido(2-hydroxy-2,2-diphenylacetato-κ² O¹,O^{-1'}) copper(II), metal-organic compounds". Acta. Crystallogr. Sect. E Struct. Rep. Online, Vol. 67. m399.
- 56. Fedorov, B. S., Fadeev, M. A., Kozub, G. I., Aldoshin, S. M., Aliev, Z. G., Atovmyan, L. O., Konovalova, N. P., Sashenkova, T. E., Kondrateva, T. A. and Blokhina1 S. V., 2009, "Synthesis and Antimetastatic Activity of Metal Complexes Based on Substituted Pyridinecarboxylic Acid Amides and Platinum Tetrachloride". Pharmaceutical Chemistry Journal, Vol. 43(3), pp. 12-16
- Fuks, L., Anuszewska, E., Kruszewska, H., Kro-wczyn, S. A., Dudek, J. and Sadlej-Sosnowska, N., 2010, "Platinum (II) Complexes with Thiourea Derivatives Containing Oxygen, Sulfur or Selenium in a Heterocyclic Ring: Computational Studies and Cytotoxic Properties". Transition Met Chem, Vol. 35, pp. 639–647.

- 58. Kremer, E., Facchin, G., Estevz, E., Albores, P., Baran, E.J., Ellena, J. and Torre, M.H., 2006, "Copper Complexes with Heterocyclic Sulfonamides: Synthesis, Spectroscopic Characterization, Microbiological and Sod-Like Activities: Crystal Structure of [Cu(sulfisoxazole)2 (H2O)4]_2H₂O". J Inorg Biochem Vol. 100, pp. 1167–1175.
- Anbalagan, V., Srinivasan, R. and Pallavi, K. S., 2001, "Synthesis, Spectroscopy and Electrochemistry of Mixed-Ligand Complexes of Platinum (II) and Palladium (II)". Tra. Met. Chem, Vol. 26 (6), pp. 603-607.
- Puthraya, K. H., Srivastava, T. S., Amonkar, A. J., Adwankar, M. K. and Chitnis, M. P., 2001, "Some Mixed-Ligand Palladium (II) Complexes of 2, 2' Bipyridine and Amino Acids as Potential Anticancer Agemts". Transition Metal Chemistry, Vol. 29 (7), pp. 1203-1205.
- Iwona, L., Anna, K., Romana, J., Andrzej, M. I., Jerzy, S., Lech, K. and Tomasz, D., 2011, "Synthesis, Molecular Characterisation, and *in Vivo* Study of Platinum(IV) Coordination Compounds Against B16 Mouse Melanoma Tumours". Chemical Papers, Vol. 65 (3), pp. 308–314.
- Lakomska, I., Wojtczak, A., Sitkowski, J., Kozerski, L., and Szlyk, E., 2008, "Platinum(IV) Complexes with Purine Analogs. Studies of Molecular Structure and Antiproliferative Activity *In Vitro*". Polyhedron, Vol. 27, pp. 2765–2770.
- Lakomska, I., 2009, "Molecular Structure and Antitumor Activity of Platinum(II) Complexes Containing Purine Analogs". Inorganic Chimica Acta, Vol. 362, pp. 669–681.
- Kaznica, A., Drewa, T., Lakomska, I., Ryta-Stamirowska, P.,Debski, R., Styczynski, J., Drewa, G., and Sz-lyk, E., 2009, "Influence of Two Pt(IV) Complexes on Viability, Apoptosis Andcell Cycle of B16 Mouse Melanoma Tumors". Exp Oncol,Vol. 31, pp. 33–36.
References 93

- 65. Aleksandrov, G. G., Kuznetsova, G. N., and Fedotova, T. N., 2006,
 "Synthesis and Crystal Structure of Tetranuclear Platinum (II) Complex [Pt4(m-CH₂COO)₂ (m-NO)₂(m-NO₂)]". Russian Journal of Inorganic Chemistry, Vol. 51(12), pp. 1872-1876.
- 66. Gielen, M., Biesemans, M., Vos, D. D. and Willem, R., 2000, "Synthesis, Characterization and *in Vitro* Antitumor Activity of Di- and Triorganotin Derivatives of Polyoxa- and Biologically Relevant Carboxylic Acids". J of inorganic biochemistry, Vol. 79 (1–4), pp. 139–145.
- Sun, L., Liang, C., Shirazian, S., Zhou, Y., Miller, T., Cui., Fukuda, J. Y., Chu, J. Y., Nematalla, A., Wang, X., Chen, H., Sistla, A., Luu, T. C., Tang, F., Wei, J. and Tang, C., 2003, "Discovery of 5-[5-Fluoro-2-oxo-1,2dihydroindol-(3Z)-ylidenemethyl]-2,4-dimethyl-1*H*-pyrrole-3-carboxylic Acid (2-Diethylaminoethyl)amide, a Novel Tyrosine Kinase Inhibitor Targeting Vascular Endothelial and Platelet-Derived Growth Factor Receptor Tyrosine Kinase". J. Med. Chem., Vol. 46 (7), pp. 1116–1119.
- Youquan, Z., Danyang, W., Yanwei, Y., Yuan, M., Xiaomao, Z. and Design,
 Y. H., 2012, "Synthesis and Bioactivity of Novel 2-Aryl-4-alkylthiazole-5carboxylic Acid Derivatives". Chin. J. Org. Chem., Vol. 32(11), pp. 2115-2121.
- Feng, S., Zeng, W., Luo, F., Zhao, J., Yang, Z. and Q Sun, Q., 2010, "Antibacterial Activity of Organic Acids in Aqueous Extracts From Pine Needles (*Pinusmassoniana* Lamb.)". Food Science and Biotechnology, Vol. 19. pp. 35-41.
- 70. Ballal, N. V., Yegneswaran, P. P., Mala, K., Bhat, K. S., 2011, "In vitro Antimicrobial Activity of Maleic Acid and Ethylenediaminetetraacetic Acid on Endodontic Pathogens". Oral Surgery, Oral Medicine, Oral Pathology, Oral Radiology and Endodontology, Vol. 112, pp. 696-700.

- 71. Alim, M. A., Mohammed, A., Sayeed, A., Rahman, M. S. and Mossadik, M. A., 2006, "Characterization and Antimicrobial Activities of a Phthalic Acid Derivative Produced by Streptomyces Bangladeshiensis a Novel Species Collected in Bangladesh". Research Journal of Medicine and Medical Sciences, Vol. 1(2), pp. 77-81.
- 72. Pablo, E. and Jesu, S. A. M., 1996, "Palladium Complexes with the Tridentate Dianionic Ligand Pyridine-2,6-dicarboxylate, Dipic. Crystal Structure of [Pd(dipic)(PBu₂)]₂" Inorg. Chem, Vol. 35, pp. 2287-2291.
- Eryazici, I., Moore, W. C. N. and Newkome, G. R., 2008, "Square-planar Pd(II), Pt(II), and Au(III) Terpyridine Complexes: Their Syntheses, Physical Properties, Supramolecular Constructs, and Biomedical Activities". Chem. Rev, Vol. 108, pp. 1834–1895.
- Puthraya, K. H., Srivastava, T. S., Amonkar, A. J., Adwankar, M. K. and Chitnis, M. P., 1985, "Some Mixed-Ligand Palladium (II) Complexes of 2,2'-Bipyridine and Amino Acids as Potential Anticancer Agents". J. Inorg. Biochem, Vol. 25(3), pp. 207-15.
- Anbalagan, V., Srinivasan, R. and Pallavi, K. S., 2001, "Synthesis, Spectroscopy and Electrochemistry of Mixed-Ligand Complexes of Platinum(II) and Palladium(II)". Tra. Met. Chem, Vol. 26 (6), pp. 603-607.
- Ajibade, P. A., Kolawole, G. A. and Brien, P. O., 2007, "Metal Complexes of 4-Amino-N-(2 Pyrimidinyl)Benzene Sulfonamide: Synthesis, Characterization and Antiprotozoal Studies". Synth. React. Inorg. Met-Org. Chem and Nano-Metal Chemistry, Vol. 37(8), pp. 653–659,
- Kuduk-Jaworska, J., Puszko, A., Kubiak, M. and Peiczyjska, M., 2004, "Synthesis, Structural, Physico-Chemical and Biological Properties of New Palladium (II) Complexes with 2, 6-Dimethyl-4-Nitropyridine". J Inorg Biochem, Vol. 98, pp. 1447–1456.

- 78. Rossella, G., Anna, M. R., Roberto, S. and Roberto, M., 1998, "Synthesis, Structure, and Reactivity of the Novel Pentacoordinate Palladium Complex [Pd(Phen)2(CO2CH3)](PF6)". Organometallics, Vol. 17, pp. 4519-4522. 79. Islam, M. S., Roy, R. K. and Miah, M. A. J., 1991, "Mixed Ligand Complexes of Pd(II), Rh(II) and Pt(II) Succinato with 1,10-Phenanthroline and 2,2-Bipyridine". Synth. React. Inorg. Met-Org. Chem, Vol. 21(5), pp. 869-873. 80. Stefan, W., Sandra, Y. D. B., Lianne, M. J., Ching, F. F., Shiuh, T. L., Jwu, T. C., Martin, L., Anthony, L. S. and Cornelis, J. E., 2009, "Synthesis and Characterization of Pd(II) Methyl Complexes with Nheterocyclic Aarbene-amine Ligands". Dalton Trans, Vol. 35, pp. 7080-7086. 81. Huang, P., Wang, Y. X., Yu, H. F. and Lu, J. M., 2014, "N-Heterocyclic Carbene-Palladium(II)-4,5-Dihydrooxazole Complexes: Synthesis and Catalytic Activity toward Amination of Aryl Chlorides". Organometallics, Vol. 33(7), pp. 1587-1593. 82. Parr, R. M., 1987, "Trace Elements In Human Milk". IAEA Bulletin, Vol. 25(2), pp.
- 7-15.
- Lenhninger, A. L., 1987, "Principles of Biochemistry". CBS publisher, 2nd edn, pp.565.
- Rossello, A., Orlandini, E., Nuti, E., Rapposelli, S., Macchia, M., Modugno,
 E. D. and Balsamo., 2004, "A Synthesis and Antimicrobial Activity of New7b-(Benzo[A]DihydrocarbazolyloxyAcetyl)-Substituted Cephalosporins". II Farmaco, Vol. 59, pp. 691–696.
- 85. Yamamoto, H., Eikyu, Y., Okuda, S., Kawabata, K., Takasugi, H., Tanaka, H., Matsumoto, S., Matsumoto, Y. and Tawara, S., 2002, "Orally Active Cephalosporins. Part 4: Synthesis, Structure–Activity Relationships and Oral Absorption of Novel 3-(4-Pyrazolylmethylthio)Cephalosporins with Various C-7 Side Chains". Bioorg Med Chem, Vol. 10, pp. 1535–1545.

- 86. Aghatabay, N. M., Neshat, A., Karabiyik, T., Somer, M., Haciu, D. and Dulger, B., 2007, "Synthesis, Characterization and Antimicrobial Activity of Fe(II), Zn(II), Cd(II) and Hg(II) Complexes with 2,6-Bis(Benzimidazol- 2-Yl) Pyridine Ligand". Eur J Med Chem, Vol. 42, pp. 205–213.
- Lin, M., Wang, X., Zhu, J., Fan, D., Zhang, Y., Zhang, J. and Guo, Z., 2011, "Cellular and Biomolecular Responses of Human Ovarian Cancer Cells to Cytostatic Dinuclear Platinum (II) Complexes". Apoptosis, Vol. 16, pp. 288– 300.
- Neves, A. P., Silva, G. B. D., Vargas, M. D., Pinheiro, C. B., Visentin, L. C., Filho, J. D., Araújo, A. J., Costa-Lotufo, L. V., Pessoa, C. and Moraes, M. O. D., 2010 "Novel Platinum (II) Complexes of 3-(aminomethyl)naphthoquinone Mannich Bases: Synthesis, Crystal Structure and Cytotoxic Activities". Dalton Trans, Vol. 39(42), pp. 10203–10216.
- Gao, J., Liu, Y. G. and Zingaro, R. A., 2009, "Cytotoxic Activities, Cellular Uptake, Gene Regulation, and Optical Imaging of Novel Platinum (II) Complexes". Chem Res Toxicol, Vol. 22, pp. 1705–1712.
- Skinner, R., Pearson, A. D., Coulthard, M. G., Skillen, A. W., Hodson, A. W., Wnch, M. E. G., Gibb, I. and Craft, A. W., 1991, "Assessment of chemotherapy-associated nephrotoxicity in children with cancer". Cancer Chemother Pharmacol, Vol. 28, pp. 81–92.
- Cooley, M. E., Davis, L. and Abrahm, J., 1994, "Cisplatin: a Clinical Review. Part II-Nursing Assessment and Management of Side Efects of Cisplatin". Cancer. Nurs, Vol. 17, pp. 283–293.
- Liao, Y., Lu, X., Lu, C., Li, G., Jin, Y. and Tang, H., 2008, "Selection of Agents for Prevention of Cisplatin-Induced Hepatotoxicity". Pharmacol Res, Vol. 57, pp. 125–131.

- 93. Chaney, S. G., Gibbons, G. R., Wyrick, S. D. and Podhasky, P., 1991, "An Unexpected Biotransformation Pathway Fortetrachloro-(D,L-Trans)-1,2-Diaminocyclohexaneplatinum(IV)(Tetraplatin) in the L1210 Cell Line". Cancer Research, Vol. 51, pp. 969-973.
- Hall, M. D., and Hambley, T. W., 2002, "Platinum(IV) Antitumorcompounds: their Bioinorganic Chemistry". Coord. Chem. Rev, Vol. 232, pp. 49–67.
- 95. Mishra, A. K., Mishra, S. B., Manav, N., Saluja, D., Chandra, R., and Kaushik, N. K., 2006., "Synthesis, Characterization, Antibacterial and Cytotoxic Study of Platinum (IV) Complexes". Bioorganic and Medicinal Chemistry, Vol. 14, pp. 6333–6340.
- 96. Guney, E., Yilmaz, V. T., Ari, F., Buyukgungor, O. and Ulukaya, E., 2011, "Synthesis, Characterization, Structures and Cytotoxic Activity of Palladium(II) and Platinum(II) Complexes Containing bis(2-Pyridylmethyl) Amine and Saccharinate". Polyhedron, Vol. 30, pp. 114–122.
- 97. Engin, U., Ferda, A. and Konstantinos, D., 2011, "Cell Death-Inducing Evect of Novel Palladium(II) and Platinum(II) Complexes on Non-Small Cell Lung Cancer Cells *In Vitro*". J Cancer Res Clin Oncol, Vol. 137, pp. 1425–1434.
- 98. Gao, E. J., Wang, L., Zhu, M. C., Liu, L. and Zhang, W.Z., 2010 "Synthesis, Characterization, Interaction with DNA and Cytotoxicity *in Vitro* of the Complexes [M(Dmphen)(CO3)].H2O [M = Pt(II), Pd(II)]". Eur J Med Chem, Vol. 45, pp. 311–316.
- Divsalar, A., Saboury, A. A., Mansoori-Torshizi, H. and Ahmad, F., 2010, "Design, Synthesis, and Biological Evaluation of a New Palladium(II) Complex: Beta-lactoglobulin and K562 as Targets". J Phys Chem, Vol. 114, pp. 3639–3647.
- Shaikh, A. R., Giridhr, R. and Yadav, M. R., 2007, "Bismuth-Norfloxacin Complex: Synthesis, Physicochemical and Antimicrobial Evaluation". Int J Pharm, Vol. 332, pp. 24–30.

- Iqbal, M. S., Ahmad, A. R., Sabir, M. and Asad, S. M., 2007, "Preparation, Characterization and Biological Evaluation of Copper(II) and Zinc(II) Complexes with Cephalexin". J Pharm Pharmacol, Vol. 51, pp. 371–375.
- Sorenson, J. R. J., 1980, "Copper Chelates as Possible Active Metabolites of the Antiarthritic and Antiepileptic Drugs". J Appl Nutr, Vol. 32, pp. 4–9.
- Zeinab, H., 2007, "Mononuclear Metal Complexes of Organic Carboxylic Acid Derivatives: Synthesis". Spectrochim Acta, Vol. 67, pp .25–38.
- El-Wahab, A., 2012, "Spectroscopic Characterization, Thermal Investigation and Antimicrobial Activity". Chem Res, Vol. 21, pp. 796–803.
- 105. Reza, M. Y., Hossain, M. B., Islam, M. S. and Alam, S., 2003, "Antimicrobial Studies of Mixed Ligand Transition Metal Complexes of Malonic Acid and Heterocyclic Bases". Pak. J. Biol. Sci, Vol. 6(15), pp. 1314-1316.
- 106. Reza, M. Y., Hossain, M. B. and Islam, M. S., 2003, "Antimicrobial Studies of Mixed Ligand Transition Metal Complexes of Phthalic Acid and Heterocyclic Bases". Pak. J. Biol. Sci, Vol. 6(17), pp. 1494-1496.
- 107. Islam, M. S., Hossain, M. B. and Reza, M. Y., 2003, "Antimicrobial Studies of Mixed Ligand Transition Metal Complexes of Maleic Acid and Heterocyclic Bases". J. Med. Sci, Vol. 3(4), pp. 289-293.
- 108. Natalya, V. L., Rafael, M., Palou, A. M. V., Diana, J. M., Victor, E. R.C., Herbert, H. and Octavio, O., 2007, "Microwave-Assisted Synthesis of 2-(2-Pyridyl)Azoles. Study of Their Corrosion Inhibiting Properties". J. of Heterocyclic Chemistry, Vol. 44, pp. 145-153.
- 109. Luo, W., Huang, K., Zhang, Z., Hong, C. and Wang, C.J., 2013, "Design, Synthesis and Cholinesterase Inhibitory Activity of Quinoline-Polyamine Conjugates". Yao Xue Xue Bao, Vol. 48(2), pp. 269-75.
- 110. Akbor, M. A., Ahsan, M .A., Akter, S. M., Islam, M. S., Akhter, N. and Hossain, M.M., 2009, "Antibacterial Activity of Mixed Ligand Transition

Metal Complexes of Some Dibasic Acids with Amine Bases" Jahangirnagar University Journal of Science, Vol. 32(1), pp. 1-6.

- 111. Hossain, M. B., Islam, M. S., Hassan, M. N., Yousuf, M. A. and Salam, M. A., 2009, "Antifungal Activity of Mixed Ligand Transition Metal Complexes of Some Dibasic Acid and Heterocyclic Bases". Daffodil International University Journal of Science and Technology, Vol. 4(1), pp. 57-59.
- 112. Sultana, C., Rahman, M, A. A., Al-Bari, M. A. M., Banu, M. L. A., Islam, M. S., khatun, M. A and Sadik, G., 2003, "*In vitro* Antimicrobial Screening of the Cadmium Coodination Complexes and two Addition Compound of Antimony and Arsenic". Pak. J. Biol. Sci, Vol. 6(5), pp. 525-527.
- 113. Vogel, A. I., 1961, "A Text-Book of Quantitative Inorganic Analysis." 3rd edn. ELBS and Longmans, Green & Co. Ltd. London.
- Green-wood, N. N. and Hunter, G., 1967, "Complexes of 1, 2-bis (isopropylseleno) ethane with Palladium(II) and platinum(II) halides". J. Chem. Soc, Vol. A. pp. 1520-1523.
- 115. Buer, A. W., Kirby, W. M. M., Sheries, J. C. and Turck, M., 1966, "Modified Ultrafiltration Method for Detg. Serum Protein Binding and its Application to Penicillins". Am. J. Clin. Pathol. Vol. 44, pp. 439-496.
- Gnanamanickam, S. S. and Smith, D. A., 1980, "Selective Toxicity of Isoflavonoid Phytoalexins to Gram Positive Bacteria Phytopathology". Vol. 70, pp. 894-896.
- Bellamy, L. J., 1966. "Ultrarot-Spectrum und Chemische Konstitution, Steinkopf Verlag, Darmstadt.
- 118. Nakamoto, K., 1978, Infrared and Raman Spectra of Inorganic and Coordination Compounds". 3rd edn. (Wiley, New York,)

- Deacon, G. B. and Phillips, R., 1980, "Relationships between the Carbon-Oxygen Stretching Frequencies of Carboxylato Complexes and the Type of Carboxylate Coordination". J. Coord. Chem. Rev, Vol. 33, pp. 227-250.
- 120. Adam, A. M. A., Refat, M .S. and Mohamed, M. A., 2013, "Synthesis and Spectroscopic Characterizations of Noble Metal Complexes (Gold, Silver, Platinum) in the Presence of Selenium, and their Biological Applications as Antibacterial, Antifungal, and Anticancer". Res Chem Intermed, DOI 10.1007/s11164-013-1249-2.
- 121. Islam, M. S., Farooque, M. A. and Bodruddoza, M. A. K., 2002, "Synthesis and Charecterization of Some Thiocynato Complexes of Ni(II), Cu(II), Pd(II), Pt(II), Au(III), Ti(III) and V(IV) Containing a Tridentate Schiff Base Ligand". Synth.React. Inorg.Met-Org.Chem, Vol. 32, pp. 1811-1823.
- 122. Nakamoto, K., 1963, "Infrared Spectra of Inorganic and Coordination Compounds". John Wiley and Sons. New York. Vol. 227, p. 112.